NEWBERRY COUNTY COUNCIL
WORK SESSION
Newberry Courthouse Annex
1309 College Street, Newberry, SC 29108
January 15, 2025
5:00 P.M.

Call to order: Nick Shealy, Chairman

1. Review and discussion of proposed revisions to the Land Development
Regulations of Newberry County codified in Chapter 154 of the Code of
Ordinances of Newberry County

2. Adjournment.

*Please note that Newberry County Council will take no action during this Work Session.
Actions taken, if any, will occur during the regular 6:00 p.m. meeting.



CHAPTER 154: SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS
Section
General Provisions
154.001 Purpose
154.002 Short title
154.003 Authority
154.004 Jurisdiction
154.005 Types of subdivisions
154.006 Definitions
Application Procedure and Approval Process for Traditional Subdivisions
154.020 General procedure
154.021 Application for exemption
154.022 Sketch plat
154.023 Preliminary piat
154.024 Final plat
154.025 Federal Housing Administration or Farmers Home Administration approval
154.026 Flood and drainage requirements
154.027 Prohibition
154.028 Street naming
154.029 Variance
Specifications for Documents to be Submitted for Traditional Subdivisions
154.040 Application for exemption
154.041 Sketch plat
154.042 Preliminary plat
154.043 Construction plans
154.044 Final plat
Requirements for Improvements, Reservations, and Design of Traditional Subdivisions

154.055 General improvements



154.056 Lotimprovements
154.057 Streets
154.058 Water facilities
154.059 Sewerage facilities
154.060 Sidewalks
154.061 Recreation
.154.062 Nonresidential subdivisions
154.063 Surety in lieu of completion of improvements
Special Subdivisions
154.075 Intent
154.076 Authority to modify standards
154.077 Maintenance of spirit of regulations
Group Developments
154.090 Generally
154.091 Procedures for group development approval
154.092 General plat information
154.093 Standards
154.094 Enforcement
Application of Regulations
154.105 Generally
Fees
154.120 Traditional subdivision processing fee schedule
154.121 Group development processing fee schedule
154.122 Special developments processing fee schedule
Legal Status
154.135 Conflict with other laws
154.136 CGrandfather clause
154.137 Effective date



154.138 Amendment
154,139 Transition

154.999 Penalty

Cross-reference:
Zoning Code, see Ch. 153

Editor’s note:

On December 29, 1988, the County Council adopted two subdivision ordinances. Ord. 105
established a plan of subdivision regulations for the county. As authorized by 1988 Act No.
583, Ord. 104 designated only one particular area of the county as the initial subdivision
district in which these regulations were applicable. Responding the prospect of increasing
growth and the need for more orderly development, the County Council, on April 19, 2006,
adopted Ord. 04-09-06, which repealed Ord. 104 so that these subdivision regulations can
be applied to the entire unincorporated area of the county.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

§ 154.001 PURPOSE.

(A) The public health, safety, economy, good order, appearance, convenience, morals,
and general welfare require the harmonious, orderly, and progressive development of land
within Newberry County,

(B) In furtherance of this general intent, the regulation of land subdivisions by Newberry
County Council is adopted for the following purposes, among others:

(1) To encourage the development of an economically sound and stable county;

(2} To assure the timely provision of required streets, utilities, and other facilities and
services to new land developments;

(3) To assure the adequate provision of safe and convenient traffic access and
circulation, both vehicular and pedestrian, in and through new land developments;

(4) To assure the provision of needed public open spaces and building sites in new land
developments through the dedication or reservation of land for recreational, educational,
and other public purposes; and

(5) To assure, in general, the wise and timely development of new areas in the county.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)



§ 154.002 SHORT TITLE.

This chapter shall be known as and may be cited as the Newberry County Subdivision
Regulations.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

§154.003 AUTHORITY.

These subdivision regulations are adopted under authority granted by the General
Assembly of South Carolina.

{(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

§ 154.004 JURISDICTION.

(A) These subdivision regulations shall apply to all subdivisions of land within the
unincorporated areas of Newberry County, and to the areas within those incorporated
municipalities, which by contract

with the county, consent to have these regulations apply to subdivisions within such
municipalities.

(B) No land shall be subdivided within the unincorporated area of Newberry County
until either:

(1) Anapplication for exemption has been approved by the administrative official; or

(2) The subdivider or his or her agent has submitted the required plats and plans, as
described in these regulations, to the Planning Commission; and

(3) The subdivider or his or her agent has submitted the required plats and plans, as
described in these regulations, to the Planning Commission; and

(4) The subdivider or his or her agent has obtained approval of all of these plats and
plans, including approval of the final plat or plan by the Planning Commission; and

(5) The approved final plat is recorded with the County Clerk of Court when a
traditional subdivision is involved.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988; Am. Ord. 04-06-06, passed 4-5-2006)

§ 154.005 TYPES OF SUBDIVISIONS.



(A} For the purpose of proper regulation, subdivisions have been divided into 4 types
and separate regulations developed for each type.

(B) These types and the applicable sections of this chapter are:

(1) Traditional subdivisions - only §§ 154.001 et seq.,, 154.020 et seq., 154.040 et seq.,
154.055 et seq., 154.105, 154.120 et seq., 154.135 et seq., and 154.999 apply to this type of
subdivision;

(2) Special subdivisions - only §§ 154.001 et seq., 154.075 et seq., 154.105, 154.120 et
seq., 154.135 et seq., and 154.999 apply to this type of subdivision;

(3) Group developments - only 154.001 et seq., 154.090 et seq., 154.105, 154.120 et
seq., 154.135 et seq., and 154.999 apply to this type of subdivision; and

(4) Minor subdivisons - [Reserved for future expansion].

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

§ 154.006 DEFINITIONS.
(A) Usage.

(1) For the purpose of these regulations, certain numbers, abbreviations, terms, and
words used herein shall be used, interpreted, and defined as set forth in this division (A).

(2) Unless the context clearly indicates to the contrary, words used in the present tense
include the future tense; words used in the plural number include the singular; the word
HEREIN means in these regulations; the word REGULATIONS means these regulations.

(3) A PERSON includes a corporation, a partnership, and an unincorporated association
of persons such as a club; SHALL is always mandatory; a BUILDING includes a STRUCTURE;
a BUILDING or STRUCTURE includes any part thereof; USED or OCCUPIED, as applied to
any land or building, shall be construed to include the words intended, arranged, or
designed to be used or occupied.

(B) Words and terms defined. For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions
shall apply unless the context clearly indicates or requires a different meaning.

ABANDONED. A structure has been left vacant or unused or unoccupied for a period of 6
months or longer, and it is further provided that the disconnection of electric power for a
period of 6 months or longer, or the failure to ever connect such a structure to electric
power after it is brought into the county, creates a rebuttable presumption that the
property has been ABANDONED.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIAL. The County Planning Director or the Zoning
Administrator, as may be directed by the County Administrator. In the absence of these
officials, or in the event of any disagreement as to the applicability of these regulations
about a decision the ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIAL is empowered to make, the County



Administrator shall be empowered to exercise the authority of the ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICIAL, and his or her decisions shall be final.

APPLICANT. The owner of land proposed to be subdivided or his or her representative.

APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION. An application to be made with the administrative
official on which basis a finding of applicability of these regulations is to be made. See the
definition of subdivision for standards of applicability.

BLOCK. A tract of land bounded by streets, or by a combination of streets and public
parks, cemeteries, railroad rights-of-way, shorelines of waterways, or boundary lines of
municipalities or counties.

BOND. Any form of security, including a cash deposit, surety bond, collateral, property,
or instrument of credit in an amount and form satisfactory to the governing body. All bonds
shall be approved by the governing body wherever a bond is required by these regulations.

BUILDING. Any structure built for the support, shelter, or enclosure of persons, animals,
chattels, or movable property of any kind, and includes any STRUCTURE.

BUILDING LINE. A line beyond which no foundation wall or part of the structure of any
building shall project, with the exception of the overhang and the sub-surface projection of
footings.

CENTRAL SEWERAGE SYSTEM. A community sewer system including collection and
treatment facilities not owned and operated by a public agency serving a new subdivision
in an outlying area.

CENTRAL WATER SYSTEM. A private water company not owned and operated by a
public agency, serving new community development in an outlying area. It includes water
treatment and distribution facilities.

CONSTRUCTION PLAN. The maps or drawings accompanying a subdivision plat or plan
and showing specific location and design of improvements to be installed in the subdivision
in accordance with the requirements of the Planning Commission as a condition of the
approval of the plat or plan.

COUNTY. The Newberry County Council.

COUNTY ENGINEER. A registered, professional engineer who may be on the staff of the
county or who may be a private consultant contracted for by the county.

DEVELOPER. The owner of land proposed to be subdivided or his or her representative,

EASEMENT. Authorization by a property owner for the use by another, and for a
specified purpose, of any designated part of his or her property. An EASEMENT has the
same meaning as set forth in the decisions of the appellate courts in the State of South
Carolina.

FINAL PLAT OR PLAN. The map or plan or record of a subdivision and any
accompanying material, as described in these regulations.



FLAG LOT. A lot which accesses a public street by a narrow strip of land, the width of
which is less than the minimum lot width specified in § 154.056(B). The configuration of
the lot often appears as the shape of a flag on a pole.

FRONTAGE. The side of a lot abutting on a street or way and ordinarily regarded as the
front of the lot.

GRADE. The slope of a road, street, or other public way, specified in percentage (%)
terms from the horizontal.

GROUP DEVELOPMENT. All divisions of a tract or parcel of land into 2 or more building
sites for the purpose, whether immediate or future, of building development. GROUP
DEVELOPMENTS would include apartment complexes, office parks, shopping centers, or
other commercial structures or complexes containing 2 or more business establishments,
mobile home parks, industrial parks, or other developments where the site is not
subdivided into lots and public streets, but is divided into 2 or more building sites.

HEALTH DEPARTMENT or COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT. The local office of the
South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control (SCDHEC), which issues
permits in the county for individual water systems, and for individual sewage treatment
and disposal systems (a/k/a/ individual sewage disposal systems), sometimes referred to
in this chapter as septic tanks.

INDIVIDUAL SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEM. A septic tank, seepage tile sewage disposal
system, or any other approved sewage treatment device.

LOT. A tract, plot, or portion of a subdivision or other parcel of land intended as a unit
for the purpose, whether immediate or future, of transfer of ownership or for building
development.

LOT AREA. The total area of the lot, including easements.

LOT, CORNER. A lot situated at the intersection of 2 streets. (The interior angle of the
intersection not exceeding 135 degrees).

LOT DEPTH. The mean horizontal distance between the front and rear lot lines.

LOT, DOUBLE FRONTAGE. A lot having frontage and access on 2 or more public streets.
A corner lot shall not be considered having double frontage unless it has frontage and
access on 3 or more streets.

LOT IMPROVEMENT. Any building, structure, work of art or other object, or
improvement of the land on which they are situated constituting a physical betterment of
real property, or any part of the betterment.

LOT INTERIOR. A lot other than a corner lot.

LOT REVERSED FRONTAGE. A lot having frontage on 2 or more public streets, the access
of which is restricted to 1 street.



LOT WIDTH. The distance between straight lines connecting front and rear lot lines at
each side of the lot, measured at the required building setback line.

MASTER PLAN. A comprehensive plan for development of Newberry County, or for
designated subdivision districts, prepared and adopted by the Planning Commission,
pursuant to state law (and adopted by County Council, if required by state law), and
including any part of the plan separately adopted and any amendment to the plan, or parts
thereof.

OFF-SITE. Any premises not located within the area of the property to be subdivided,
whether or not in the same ownership of the applicant for subdivision approval.

OFFICIAL MAP. The map established by the Newberry County Council pursuant to law
showing the streets, highways, and parks, and drainage systems and setback lines therefore
laid out, adopted and established by law, and any amendment or additions thereto adopted
by the Newberry County Council of additions thereto resulting from the approval of
subdivision plats by the Planning Commission and the subsequent filing of the approved
plats.

ORDINANCE. Any legislative action, however denominated, of a local government which
has the force of law, including any amendment or repeal of any ordinance.

OWNER. Any person, group of persons, firm or firms, corporation or corporations, or
any other legal entity having legal title to or sufficient proprietary interest in the land
sought to be subdivided under these regulations.

PARKING, OFF-STREET. An area adequate for parking an automobile with room for
opening doors on both sides, together with properly related access to a public street
arranged so that no maneuvering incidental to parking shall be on any public street and so
that an automobile may be parked or unparked therein without moving any other
automobiles.

PLANNING COMMISSION. The Newberry County Joint Planning Commission.

PRELIMINARY PLAT OR PLAN. The preliminary drawing or drawings, described in these
regulations, indicating the proposed manner or layout of the subdivision to be submitted to
the Planning Commission for approval.

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT. Any drainage ditch, roadway, parkway, sidewalk,
pedestrianway, tree, lawn, off-street parking area, lot improvement, or other facility for
which the local government may ultimately assume the responsibility for maintenance and
operation, or which may affect an improvement for which local government responsibility
is established.

REGISTERED ENGINEER. An engineer properly licensed and registered in the state.

REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR. A land surveyor properly licensed and registered in the
state.



RESERVE STRIP. A strip of land adjacent to a public street or similar right-of-way which
has been reserved for the purpose of controlling access to the public way.

RESUBDIVISION. A change in a map of an approved or recorded subdivision plat if the
change affects any street layout on the map or area reserved thereon for public use, or any
lot line; or if it affects any map or plan legally recorded prior to the adoption of any
regulations controlling subdivisions.

RIGHT-OF-WAY. A strip or parcel of land occupied or intended to be occupied by a
street, road, railroad, or other special use, Fee simple title is usually granted to the agency
or entity acquiring the right-of-way. The usage of the term RIGHT-OF-WAY for land platting
purposes shall mean that every right-of-way hereafter established and shown on a final
platis to be separate and distinct from the lots or parcels adjoining the right-of-way and
not included within the dimensions or areas of the lots and parcels. RIGHTS-OF-WAY
intended for roads, railroads, streets, and similar uses shall be dedicated by the property
owners on whose property the rights-of-way are established to the entity accepting
responsibility for their maintenance.

SALE or LEASE. Any immediate or future transfer of ownership, or any possessory
interest in land, including contract of sale, lease, devise, intestate succession, or transfer, of
an interest in a subdivision or part thereof, whether by metes and bounds, deed, contract,
plat, map, lease, devise, intestate succession, or other written instrument.

SAME OWNERSHIP. The same individual, partnership, or corporation who is submitting
the subdivision in question for review.

SCREENING. Either:

(a) Astrip of atleast 10 feet wide, densely planted (or having equivalent natural
growth) with shrubs or trees at least 4 feet high at the time of planting, of a type that will
form a year-round dense screen at least 6 feet high; or

(b) Anopaque wall or barrier or fence at least 6 feet high.

SETBACK. The distance between a building line and the street right-of-way nearest
thereto.

SKETCH PLAT or SITE PLAN. A sketch preparatory to the preparation of the preliminary
plat or plan (or construction plans in the case of group developments) to enable the
subdivider to save time and expense in reaching general agreement with the Planning
Commission as to the form of the plat or plan and the objectives of these regulations.

STREET. The word means, relates to, and includes the entire right-of-way of streets,
avenues, boulevards, roads, highways, freeways, lanes, alleys, courts, thoroughfares,
collectors, minor streets, cul-de-sacs, and other ways.

STREET CLASSIFICATIONS. Streets may be classified as follows:



(a) ALLEY. A public or private right-of-way primarily designed to serve as secondary
access to the side or rear of those properties whose principal frontage is on some other
street.

(b) MINOR STREET. A street which is used or intended to be used to provide access to
other streets from individual properties. Types of minor streets include:

1. URBAN RESIDENTIAL. Minor streets serving residential lots of less than 2 acres in
size;

2. RURAL RESIDENTIAL. Minor streets serving residential lots having an overall
density for the subdivision of no greater than 1 lot per 2 acres, excluding street rights-of-
way and where no lot is less than 1.5 acres;

3. COMMERCIAL or INDUSTRIAL. Minor streets serving commercial or industrial
uses;

4. MARGINAL ACCESS. Minor streets located parallel and adjacent to a limited
access street or highway which provide access to abutting properties and protection from
through traffic; and

5. CUL-DE-SAC. Minor street with only 1 outlet and having an appropriate terminal
for the safe and convenient reversal of traffic movement.

(c) HALF STREET. A 1-lane street.

(d) COLLECTOR STREET. A street which is used or intended to be used for moving
traffic from minor streets to major thoroughfares, including the principal entrance and
circulation street or streets of a development. Types of COLLECTOR STREETS include:

1. URBAN RESIDENTIAL. Collector streets which serve minor urban residential
streets;

2. RURAL RESIDENTIAL. Collector streets which serve only minor rural residential
streets and single-family residential lots which meet the lot size requirements of a minor
residential street; and

3. COMMERCIAL or INDUSTRIAL. Collector streets which serve minor commercial
or industrial streets.

(e) MAJOR THOROUGHFARE. A freeway, expressway, or an arterial street or highway
which is used or intended to be used for moving either heavy vehicular traffic volumes or
high-speed traffic or both or which was designated as a major thoroughfare in the
Comprehensive Plan.

STREET, PERIMETER. Any existing street to which the parcel of land to be subdivided
abuts on only 1 side,

SUBDIVIDER. Any person who, having an interest in land, causes it, directly or
indirectly, to be divided into a subdivision; or who, directly or indirectly sells, leases, or
develops, or offers to sell, lease, or develop, or advertises for sale, lease, or development,



any interest, lot, parcel site, unit, or plat in a subdivision; or who engages directly or
through an agent in the business of selling, leasing, developing, or offering for sale, lease, or
development a subdivision or any interest, lot, parcel site, unit, or plat in a subdivision; and
who is directly or indirectly controlled by, or under direct or indirect common control with,
any of the foregoing.

SUBDIVISION. All divisions of a tract or parcel of land into 2 or more lots, building sites,
or other divisions for the purpose, whether immediate or future, of sale, legacy, or building
development, and includes all division of land involving a new street or a change in existing
streets, and includes resubdivision and, where appropriate, to the process of subdivision or
to the land or area subdivided; provided, however, that the following, if no utilities systems
are involved, are included within this definition only for the purpose of filing an application
for exemption:

(a) Subdivision of 2 to 5 lots in which all lots meet the requirements of the Health
Department and front on an existing public road, and with no more than 5 lots being
permitted within any 12-month period from a single tract or adjoining tracts of record
which were under the same ownership on the date of adoption of this chapter;

(b) The combination or recombination of portions of previously platted lots where
the total number of lots is not increased and the resultant lots are equal to the standards of
the governing authority. In interpreting this division (b), the term PREVIOUSLY PLATTED
shall mean platted, approved, and recorded, if the lots were created in accordance with
subdivision regulations in effect at the time of their creation, or created as a result of a land
division and recorded prior to existence of applicable subdivision regulations;

(c) Completion of existing subdivisions already having received the approval of
construction plans (preliminary plat) by the appropriate public agencies, and where
construction of streets or utilities have been commenced prior to the adoption of these
regulations;

(d) The division of a tract of land into lots where the property is sold or given to the
children or relatives of the owner, provided the lot sizes are equal to, or exceed, the
standards set forth in these regulations and meet the requirements of the Health
Department. The configuration of lots must meet the requirements of § 154.056;

(¢) The division of land into parcels of 5 acres or more where no new streets are
involved; and

(f) Partitions of land, or other subdivision of property, by order of a court of
competent jurisdiction.

SUBDIVISION TYPES.

(a) SPECIAL SUBDIVISION. Any subdivision which, after determination by the
Planning Commission, is sufficiently unusual in its design, layout, character, or other
features as to warrant special evaluation of the subdivision by the Planning Commission as
to how it satisfies the purposes of these subdivision regulations as stated in § 154.001.



(b) NONRESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION., A subdivision whose intended use is other than
residential, such as commercial or

industrial. The subdivision shall comply with the applicable provisions of these regulations.

(c) TRADITIONAL SUBDIVISION. All divisions of a tract or parcel of land into 2 or
more lots, building sites, or other divisions for the purpose, whether immediate or future,
of sale, legacy, or building development, and includes all division of land involving a new
street or a change in existing streets, and includes resubdivision and, where appropriate, to
the process of subdivision or to the land or area subdivided; provided, however, that the
following exceptions are included within this definition only for the purpose of requiring
that an application for exemption be filed with the administrative official;

1. All exceptions stated in the definition of a subdivision; and

2. Subdivisions of land declared to be special subdivisions by the Planning
Commission.

(d) MINOR SUBDIVISION. [Reserved for future expansion].

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988; Am. Ord. 11-42-02, passed 11-20-2002; Am. Ord. 04-06-06,
passed 4-5-2006; Am, Ord. 04-07-06, passed 4-5-2006)

APPLICATION PROCEDURE AND APPROVAL PROCESS FOR TRADITIONAL SUBDIVISIONS

§ 154.020 GENERAL PROCEDURE.

(A) Whenever any subdivision of land is proposed, before any contract is made for the
sale of any part thereof, and before any permit for the erection of a structure in the
proposed subdivision shall be granted, the subdividing owner, or his or her authorized
agent, shall apply for and secure approval of the proposed subdivision in accordance with
the following procedure, which includes only 1 step for those subdivisions noted as
exceptions in the definition of subdivision, and basically 4 steps for those which are not
exempted.

(B) Those exempted only have to file an application for exemption.

(C) Those subdivisions which are not exempt shall be classified as such when the
application for exemption is denied. They then must proceed through the 3 additional
steps, as follows:

(1) Sketch plat;
(2) Preliminary plat; and
(3) Final plat.
(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penalty, see § 154.999



§ 154.021 APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION.

(A) Application procedure. Prior to subdividing land, an owner of the land, or his or her
representative, shall request an application for exemption. This application shall be
requested at the office of the administrative official and shall conform to the requirements
of §§ 154.040 et seq.

(B) Requirements for exemption. To be exempted, a subdivision must meet at least 1 of
the criteria stated in the definition of subdivision.

(C) Approval of exemption. Applications for exemption shall be received and evaluated
by the administrative official. A copy of all applications for exemption shall be kept on file
by the administrative official. The administrative official will normally advise the applicant
at the time of application that the application for exemption is approved or disapproved,
but in no case shall it take longer than 5 working days to act on the application. If approved,
the approval means that the subdivision shall not have any other requirements to meet
under these regulations. If disapproved, the subdivision shall be subject to the other
requirements of these regulations. If the administrative official fails to act on the
application for exemption within 5 working days after application, the application shall be
deemed approved.

(D) Appeals of the decisions of the administrative official. If an applicant disagrees with
the disapproval of his or her application for exemption by the administrative official, he or
she may submit the application for exemption to the Planning Commission at its next
regular meeting. The Planning Commission shall review the application for exemption at
the meeting at which it is presented and act on the appeal within 30 days of the date of the
meeting. When the Planning Commission renders its decision, pertinent comments and
recommendations shall be noted in the minutes of the Planning Commission meeting.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penalty, see § 154.999

§ 154.022 SKETCH PLAT.

(A) Discussion of requirements. Before preparing the sketch plat for a subdivision, the
applicant should discuss with the administrative official the procedure for adoption of a
subdivision plat and the requirements as to general layout of streets and for reservations of
land, street improvements, drainage, sewerage, fire protection, and similar matters, as well
as the availability of existing services. The administrative official shall also advise the
applicant, where appropriate, to discuss the proposed subdivision with those officials who
must eventually approve those aspects of the subdivision plat coming within their
jurisdiction.

(B} Application procedure and requirements. Prior to subdividing land, an owner of the
land, or his or her representative, shall file an application for approval of a sketch plat. The
application shall:



(1) Be made on forms available at the office of the administrative official;

(2) Include all contiguous holdings of the owner, including land in the same ownership,
as defined in § 154.006, with an indication of the portion which is proposed to be
subdivided, accompanied by an affidavit of ownership; and

(3) Beaccompanied by a minimum of 7 copies of the sketch plat as described in these
regulations and complying in all respects with these regulations.

(C) Approval of sketch plat. After reviewing the sketch plat, the administrative official
will advise the applicant within 15 days after application that the sketch plat is approved,
disapproved, or approved with certain modifications. If approved, the approval shall
constitute authorization to prepare and submit a preliminary plat. If the administrative
official fails to act on the sketch plat within 15 days after application, the sketch plat shall
be deemed approved and a certificate to that effect shall be issued by the Planning
Commission upon demand; provided, however, that the subdivider may waive this
requirement and consent in writing to extension of the period.

(D) Appeals of the decisions of the administrative official. If an applicant disagrees with
the disapproval or approval with modifications of his or her sketch plat by the
administrative official, he or she may submit the sketch plat to the Planning Commission at
its next regular meeting. The Planning Commission shall review the sketch plat at the
meeting at which it is presented and act on the appeal within 30 days of the date of the
meeting, with pertinent comments and recommendations, and a written decision, with
findings of fact, being promptly delivered to the applicant and to the land owner. Notice of
the hearing at which the Planning Commission is to consider the sketch plat will be mailed
by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the person designated to receive notice of the
hearing on behalf of the applicant at least 10 days prior to the meeting, although the notice
may be waived by the applicant or landowner.

(E) Distribution of sketch plat.

(1) Sketch plats shall be distributed for purposes of notification to the following
agencies and departments when appropriate:

(a) Administrative official (file copy);
(b) County Health Department;
(c) County Engineer;

(d) City Engineer or Public Service District (if either is involved due to a tie-in to a
water or sewer system);

(e) County Public Works Department; and
(f) Central Midlands Regional Planning Council.

(2) Inaddition, 1 copy shall be returned to the applicant showing any modifications
needed.



(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penalty, see § 154.999

§ 154.023 PRELIMINARY PLAT.

(A) Application procedure and requirements. Based upon the approval of the sketch plat,
the applicant should file with the administrative official an application for approval of a
preliminary plat. The application shall:

(1) Bemade on forms available at the office of the administrative official together with
a fee as set forth in §§ 154.120 et seq,;

(2) Beaccompanied by a minimum of 7 copies of the preliminary plat as described in
these regulations;

(3) Beaccompanied by a minimum of 7 copies of construction plans as described in
these regulations; and

(4) Conform in all respects with the sketch plat as approved.
(B) Approval of preliminary plat.

(1) Upon determination by the administrative official that the preliminary plat
conforms with the approved sketch plat, the administrative official shall submit an
appropriate number of copies of the preliminary plat and construction plans to the
following agencies for review and approval:

(a) County Health Department (if septic tanks or individual wells are involved);

(b} City Engineer or Public Service District (if either is involved due to a tie-in to a
public water or sewer system);

(¢) County Engineer;

(d) South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control Water Division
(if a tie-in to or a new public water system is involved);

(e) South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control Waste Water
Division (if a tie-in to or a new public sewer systems is involved); and

(f) Central Midlands Regional Planning Council (for comment only).

(2) These reviewing agencies shall report their findings to the Planning Commission
within 30 days after receipt of preliminary plat. Upon receipt of reports from these
reviewing agencies, the Planning Commission shall give approval, approval with certain
modifications, or disapproval of the preliminary plat, but in each case their action shall be
taken within 60 days after submission of the preliminary plat; otherwise, the plat shall be
deemed to have been approved and a certificate to that effect shall be issued by the
Planning Commission on demand; provided, however, that the applicant for the Planning
Commission's approval may waive this requirement and consent in writing to an extension



of the period. The grounds of disapproval of any preliminary plat shall be stated in the
records of the Planning Commission, and the reasons for the disapproval shall be delivered
in writing, return receipt requested, to the applicant and the land owner within 10 days of
the Planning Commission's decision.

(3) Itis expressly understood that the Planning Commission shall not act to override
the requirements of other agencies or county departments. It may, however, seek to bring
agreement in case of conflicts between the various reviewing agencies, or a reviewing
agency and the subdivider.

(4) All plats submitted to the Planning Commission shall contain the name, address,
and telephone number of a designated contact person. At least 10 days prior to the meeting
in which the Planning Commission will act on the preliminary plat, a notice of the hearing
shall be sent to certified mail to the contact person. The notice shall specify the date, time,
and location of the meeting.

(5) Any appeal of the Planning Commission's decision shall be made to the County
Council who shall hear the appeal, and in its discretion hear oral argument on the appeal,
and make its decision known to the appellant and the Planning Commission. Any appeal to
County Council must be in writing and filed with County Council within 10 days after the
notice of the decision of the Planning Commission has been delivered to the subdivider.
The County Council must render its decision as to whether or not the appeal shall be heard
within the 20-day period thereafter. Failure to act by County Council within the 20-day
period shall constitute a denial of the appeal and the ruling of the Planning Commission
shall be the final administrative decision in the matter. If County Council determines to give
a formal hearing on the appeal, the applicant shall be notified by certified mail, return
receipt requested, mailed at least 5 days before the hearing. The Council shall have the
discretion to consider or not consider any oral argument by the applicant or other
interested parties.

(6) Approval of the preliminary plat shall be noted on the plat and certified by the
administrative official to the Planning Commission on authorization by the Planning
Commission. Also noted shall be the date on which the Planning Commission granted
approval and the date of written notification to the subdivider or his or her authorized
agent.

(7) Approval of a preliminary subdivision plat shall not constitute approval of the final
subdivision plat. Application for approval of the final (record) plat will be considered only
after the requirements for final plat approval as specified herein have been fulfilled and
after all other specified conditions have been met. Upon approval of the preliminary
subdivision plat by the Planning Commission, the subdivider may proceed to comply with
the other requirements of these regulations and the preparation of the final subdivision
plat.

(C) Effective period of preliminary approval. The approval of a preliminary plat shall be
effective for a period of 1 year, at the end of which time final approval on the subdivision
must have been obtained from the Planning Commission, although the plat need not yet be
signed and filed with the County Clerk of Court. Any plat not receiving final approval within



the period of time set forth herein shall be required to resubmit a new plat for preliminary
approval subject to all new subdivision regulations.

(D) Model homes, sales offices, and community buildings. For the purpose of allowing
the early construction of model homes, sales offices, and community buildings, the
Planning Commission, at its discretion, may authorize the issuance of building permits for
these structures, provided:

(1) Preliminary plat approval has been obtained;

(2) The building permit may only be issued to the developer or, if the developer does
not have a contractor's license, to a third-party licensed contractor with the prior approval
of the county;

(3) All building permits issued at this time are for speculative commercial ventures
only. The issuance of the permit does not guarantee the developer the right to sell, convey,
or occupy the structure;

(4) The number of structures permitted under this division (D) shall be limited to 4, or
a number not to exceed 10% of the lots depicted in the preliminary plat, whichever is
greater; and

(5) Nomodel homes, sales offices, or community buildings shall be conveyed until the
developer has obtained final plat approval or bonded final plat approval.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penalty, see § 154.999

§ 154.024 FINAL PLAT.

(A} Application procedure and requirement. Following the approval of the preliminary
plat and completion of all required improvements, if the improvements are not going to be
bonded, the applicant shall file with the administrative official an application for final
approval of a subdivision plat. The application shall:

(1) Bemade on forms available at the office of the administrative official;

(2) Beaccompanied by a minimum of 7 prints and 1 reproducible copy of the final plat
and:

(a) An as built drawing of sanitary sewers (if applicable) with grade, pipe sizes, and
points of discharge;

(b) An as built drawing of storm sewer system with grade, pipe sizes, and location of
outlets; and

(c) Anas built drawing of water system with pipe sizes and location of hydrants and
valves,

(3) Comply in all respects with the preliminary plat as approved;



(4) Beaccompanied by all formal irrevocable offers of dedication to the public of all
streets, local government uses, utilities, parks, and easements, in a form approved by the
local government attorney; and the final plat shall be marked with a notation indicating the
formal offers of dedication as follows:

“The owner, or his or her authorized agent, hereby irrevocably offers for dedication to the
local government all the streets, local government uses, easements, parks and required
utilities shown in the subdivision plat and construction plans in accordance with an
irrevocable offer of dedication dated , and recorded in the County Clerk of Court's
office.”

By:
(Owner or Representative)
Date:

The applicant shall deliver a full covenant and warranty deed to all the lands in proper
form for recording;

(5) Beaccompanied by the performance bond, if required, in a form satisfactory to the
local government attorney and in an amount established by the Planning Commission upon
recommendation of the County Engineer, and shall include a provision that the principal of
the bond shall comply with all the terms of the resolution of final plat approval as
determined by the Planning Commission, and shall include, but not be limited to, the
performance of all required subdivision and off-site improvements, and that all
improvements and land included in the irrevocable offer of dedication shall be dedicated to
the local government free and clear of all liens and encumbrances on the premises; and

(6) Beaccompanied by the following certificate signed by a registered South Carolina
engineer, covering all required improvements which are not bonded:

‘I hereby certify that the streets, drainage system, sewer system, and water systemin____
subdivision as shown on the As-Built Drawings dated ___, prepared by have been
installed in accordance with the preliminary plat and Construction Plans approved by the
Newberry County Planning Commissionon___.”

SEAL
(Registered Engineer)
(B) Final plat approval.

(1) Upon certification by the administrative official to the Planning Commission that
the final plat is in conformity with the preliminary plat as approved, the administrative
official shall submit an appropriate number of copies of the final plat and as built drawings
to the same agencies and county departments which reviewed and approved the
preliminary plat.



(2) These reviewing agencies shall report their findings to the Planning Commission
within 30 days after receipt of the final plat.

(3) Upon receipt of:

(a) Areport from the County Health Department that all lots are acceptable for
installation of wells or a report from the City Engineer/Public Service District and the
~ South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control Water Division that the
water system is acceptable for operation;

(b) Areport from the County Health Department that all lots are acceptable for
installation of an individual sewage disposal system or a report from the City
Engineer/Public Service District and the South Carolina Department of Health and
Environmental Control Waste Water Division that the waste water system is acceptable for
operation; and

(c) Areport from the County Engineer and the County Public Works Department that
all streets and drainage facilities have been properly installed in accordance with the
preliminary plat.

(4) Orupon approval of a bond for completion of improvements by the County Council,
or its designee, the Planning Commission shall give approval, approval with modifications,
or disapproval of the final plat. When a bond is used in lieu of completion of improvements,
the Planning Commission shall stipulate the period of time within when all of the required
improvements shall be installed and approved by the appropriate agencies. In no event
shall this time be longer than 2 years.

(5) In each case, the Planning Commission shall act on a final plat within 60 days after
the date of application; otherwise, the plat shall be deemed to have been approved and a
certificate to that effect shall be issued by the Planning Commission on demand; provided,
however that the applicant may waive this requirement and consent in writing to the
extension of the period. The grounds of disapproval of any plat shall be stated upon the
records of the Planning Commission, No plat shall be acted upon by the Planning
Commission without affording a hearing thereon, notice of time and place of which shall be
sent by registered or certified mail to the address provided by the applicant not less than 5
days before the time of the hearing.

(6) Itis expressly provided that the Planning Commission shall not act to override the
requirements of other agencies or county departments. It may, however, seek to bring
agreement in cases of conflict between the various reviewing agencies, or a reviewing
agency and the subdivider.

(7) Inno case shall the Planning Commission disapprove a final plat of a subdivision
which:

(a) Meets the requirements of a final plat as set forth in these regulations;
(b) Conforms to an approved preliminary plat; and

(c) Has all the required improvements installed and approved.



(8) (a) Anyappeal shall be made to the County Council, which shall hear the appeal
and, in its discretion, hear oral argument on the appeal, and render a written decision,
including findings of fact, within 20 days of the hearing of the appeal, to the appellant and
the Planning Commission.

(b) Any appeal to County Council must be in writing and filed with County Council
within 10 days after notice of the decision of the Planning Commission has been delivered
to the applicant and land owner,

(¢) The County Council must render its decision as to whether or not the appeal shall
be heard within 20 days thereafter, and if it determines to consider the appeal, or to
receive oral argument, to formally consider the an appeal, including any oral argument,
within 20 days thereafter.

(d) Failure to act by County Council within the 20-day period shall constitute a denial
of the appeal and the ruling of the Planning Commission shall be the final administrative
decision in the matter.

(C) Certificate of approval for recording. Upon approval of the final plat by the Planning
Commission, the following statement will be placed on the final plat by the administrative
official and 2 copies of the plat returned to the subdivider:

“The subdivision plat shown hereon has been found to comply with the Newberry County
Subdivision Regulations and has been approved for recording in the Office of the Clerk of
Court of Newberry County, South Carolina.”

Date:
Title:

(D) Recording of final plat. It shall be the responsibility of the administrative official to
file the plat with the County Clerk of Court's office within 30 days of the date of signature.

(E) Staging of major subdivisons. The Planning Commission may grant final plat
approval to sections of a subdivision shown on an approved preliminary plat which meets
all the previously mentioned requirements of this chapter, if the sections in the opinion of
the Planning Commission are adequately served by all utilities, a storm drainage system,
and street system, even if no other sections of the subdivision are developed.

(F) Final plat revisions. If it should become necessary to revise a final plat due to a
dimensional error, a revised plat shall be submitted to the County Clerk to Council for final
recording after the Planning Commission has approved and signed the revised plat.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988 ; Am. Ord. 04-12-08, passed 7-16-2008) Penalty, see §
154.999

§ 154.025 FEDERAL HOUSING ADMINISTRATION OR FARMERS HOME ADMINISTRATION
APPROVAL.



In the event the subdivider plans to secure approval of his or her subdivision design by
the Federal Housing Administration and /or the Farmers Home Administration, it is
suggested that the approval be secured prior to submission of a preliminary plat to the
Planning Commission.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

§ 154.026 FLOOD AND DRAINAGE REQUIREMENTS.

(A) General prohibition. No land shall be subdivided if the land is determined by the
Planning Commission to be unsuitable for its intended use by reason of flooding or
improper drainage, objectionable

earth and rock formations, or any other feature determined to be unreasonably harmful to
the health and safety of possible residents or users of the area and the community as a
whole

(B) Areas in Special Flood Hazard Areas or otherwise subject to inundation by flood
waters. All development shall be subject to the provisions of the stormwater and sediment
control regulations for the county, as set forth in Chapter 155 and ordinances amendatory
thereto,

(1) For subdivisions, any part of which is within a designated Special Flood Hazard
Area, the preliminary plat and the final plat shall clearly show the limits of all portions of
the subdivision which are in a Special Flood Hazard Area, and the flood zone classification
of such area(s), and the boundaries of the Special Flood liazard Area shall be clearly shown,
including any clarification of the flood zones or area boundaries resulting from Letters of
Map Amendment (LOMA) or Letters of Local Map Amendment-Fill (LOMA-F).

(2) Allstructures in a subdivision shall be located and constructed in accordance with
other county ordinances relating to zoning, flood prevention, storm drainage, the adoption
of standard building codes, and other land use issues. Reference is made to the following
specific ordinances, the terms of which shall govern in the event of any variation between
them and the requirements of this section:

(a) The County Zoning Ordinance, No. 12-24-01, as amended;

(b) Ordinance No. 06-33-03, setting forth comprehensive regulations relating to flood
damage prevention and repealing portions of the ordinance enacted 4-3-2002;

(¢) Ordinance No. 04-12-04, adopting two technical amendments to Ordinance No.
06-33-03;

(d) Ordinance No. 10-41-04, generally relating to freeboard requirements and
modifying the base flood elevations (BFE) for the Special Flood Hazard Areas around Lakes
Greenwood and Murray;



(e) Ordinance Nos. 01-04-05 and 06-20-05, adopting the International Building
Codes, and the approved changes thereto, and ordinances amendatory thereto.

(3) Allrequired public improvements, including streets and roads, drainage, water
supply, and sanitary sewers, shall be in accordance with all applicable state statutes and
regulations, and all applicable county ordinances and, because of the possibility of flooding
in areas in or near Special Flood Hazard Areas, all such improvements shall be in
accordance with such special conditions as may reasonably be required by the Planning
Commission or by the public agency under whose jurisdiction and supervision the
improvements are made.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988; Am. Ord. 04-06-06, passed 4-5-2006) Penalty, see § 154.999

§ 154.027 PROHIBITION.

The Clerk of Court of Newberry County shall not accept, file, or record any subdivision
plat, plat of a group development, planned unit development, or experimental development
unless the plat has been duly approved by the Newberry County Planning Commission.
Should any public official violate the provisions of §§ 154.020 et seq., he or she shall in each
instance be subject to the penalties stated in § 154.999 of these regulations. After the date
of adoption of this chapter, all plats to be recorded must indicate whether they are new
subdivisions of land.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penalty, see § 154.999

§ 154.028 STREET NAMING.

(A} The applicant shall recommend proposed street names in the subdivision, in
accordance with the provisions of the Newberry County Road Naming and Addressing
Identification and Guidelines, promulgated in Ordinance No. 10-39-05, adopted by the
County Council on October 19, 2005, and any amendments thereto.

(B) Addresses for lots and/or discrete dwelling units within the subdivision shall be
assigned in accordance with the guidelines set forth in that ordinance.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988; Am. Ord. 04-06-06, passed 4-5-2006)

§ 154.029 VARIANCE.

(A) When, due to the peculiar shape or topography of a tract of land or other unusual
condition, it is impractical for a developer to comply with the literal interpretations of the
design requirements of these regulations, the Planning Commission shall be authorized to
vary the requirements, provided the intent and purpose of these regulations are not
violated.



(B) As further clarification, the variances may be granted when the Planning Commission
finds:

(1) There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular
piece of property in question because of its size, shape, or topography:

(2) The application of this chapter would create an unnecessary hardship;
(3) The conditions are peculiar to the particular piece of property involved; and/or

(4) Relief, if granted, would not create substantial detriment to the public good or
impair the purposes and intent of this chapter or the Comprehensive Plan.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

SPECIFICATIONS FOR DOCUMENTS TO BE SUBMITTED FOR TRADITIONAL SUBDIVISIONS

§ 154.040 APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION.

(A) Application for exemption shall be requested at the office of the administrative
official. This application will request the following information and may be filled out by the
administrative official:

(1) Name of the applicant, and name of land owner:
(2) Address of the applicant, and address of land owner;
(3) Phone number of the applicant, and phone number of land owner;
(4) Location of the property to be subdivided:
(a) Public street on which the property is located;

(b) Located on a road map of the county which the administrative official shall
provide; and

(c) Tax map number.
(5) Features of the property:
(a) Total acreage of the tract to be subdivided;
(b) Number of lots proposed;
(c) Shape, dimension, and total acreage of each lot proposed;
(d) Arrangement of lots proposed; and

(e) Health Department approval of each lot to be subdivided.



(B) The subdivider may, and is encouraged to, submit a surveyed plat or freehand sketch
of the tract he or she plans to subdivide. This sketch or plat may include information on the
area of the tract, adjacent roads, existing roads, dimensions of the tract, and area,
dimensions, and arrangement of lots.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

§ 154.041 SKETCH PLAT.

(A} Sketch plats submitted to the Planning Commission, prepared in pen or pencil, shall
be drawn to a convenient scale of not less than 200 feet to 1 inch and shall show the
following information:

(1) Name.
(a) Name of subdivision if property is within an existing subdivision;

(b) Proposed name if not within a previously platted subdivision. The proposed name
shall not duplicate the name of any plat previously recorded; and

(c) Name of property if no subdivision has been chosen. (This is commonly the name
by which the property is locally known).

(2) Ownership.

(a) Name and address, including telephone number, of legal owner or agent of the
property involved in the subdivision; and

(b) Name and address, including telephone number, of the professional person(s), if
any, responsible for the subdivision's design, or for the design of any public improvements,
and for the surveys.

(3) Location. A vicinity map at a scale of not less than 1 inch equals 1 mile showing the
relationship of the proposed subdivision to surrounding locale. The scale of the vicinity
map should be shown, as well as a north arrow; and

(4) Features.
(a) Total acreage in the tract to be subdivided;

(b) Location of property lines, existing easements, railroad rights-of-way, water
courses, and existing buildings;

(c) Location of all existing or platted streets or other public ways within or adjacent
to the tract;

(d) Names of any adjoining subdivisions;

(e) Approximate location, widths, and classification of proposed streets, including
width of rights-of-way;



(f) Approximate location, dimensions, and area of all proposed or existing lots;
(g) Existing and proposed uses of land throughout the subdivision;
(h) Existing uses of land surrounding the subdivision;

(i) The approximate location and dimensions of any parcels of land proposed to be
set aside for a park, playground, or other public use, or for the common use of property
owners in the proposed subdivision with designation of the purpose thereof:

(J) Location of lakes, swamps, and land subject to flood, based on a 100-year
frequency flood;

(k) Topography in terms of mean sea level by contours at vertical intervals of not
more than 5 feet (the Planning Commission's administrative official may accept vertical
intervals of not more than 10 feet or waive the requirements where existing topographic
mapping is not available at 5 feet contours and the terrain of the proposed subdivision is
not of major significance); and

(1) Location of city limit lines and county lines, if applicable.

(B) The subdivider may, and is encouraged to, submit a sketch plat of the entire tract he
or she plans to ultimately develop, even though his or her present plans call for the actual
development of only a part of the property.

(C) (1) Asite evaluation of the development, including a soil survey and interpretations
conducted or approved by the County Soil and Water Conservation District as described
herein, may be submitted as an integral component of the sketch plat.

(2} (a) The developer of the subdivision shall apply to the Soil and Water
Conservation District to do the required site evaluation and soil survey and interpretations.

(b) Ifthe staff of the Conservation District determines that it cannot perform the site
evaluation within 30 days of the application, then the developer may contract with a
registered engineer, landscape architect, or professional soil conservationist to perform the
site evaluation.

(c) This site evaluation must be submitted to the staff of the conservation district for
approval.

(d) The staff shall review the site evaluation with 15 days of its submission.

(3} Itissuggested that the subdivider obtain a site evaluation, including a soil survey
and interpretations, and use it as an aid in the development of his or her sketch plat.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penalty, see § 154.999

§ 154.042 PRELIMINARY PLAT.



(A) The preliminary plat shall be prepared by a South Carolina Registered Land Surveyor
at a convenient scale of not less than 1 inch equals 100 feet.

(B) The preliminary plat shall include the following:
(1) Name.
(a) Name of subdivision if property is within an existing subdivision; and

(b) Proposed name if not within a previously platted subdivision. The proposed name
shall not duplicate the name of any plat previously recorded.

(2) Ownership.

(a) Name and address, including telephone number, of legal owner and his or her
authorized agent, if any, of the property involved in the subdivision; and

(b) Name and address, including telephone number, of the professional person(s)
responsible for the subdivision's design, or for the design of any public improvements, and
for the surveys.

(3) Location. A vicinity map at a scale of not less than 1 inch equals 1 mile showing the
relationship of the proposed subdivision to surrounding locale. The scale of the vicinity
map should be shown, as well as a north arrow; and

(4) Features.
(a) Total acreage in the tract to be subdivided;

(b) Graphic scale, north point, and date. The north point shall be identified as
magnetic, true, or grid north;

(c) Boundaries of the tract to be subdivided with all bearings and distances indicated.
The boundary survey shall be to such a degree of accuracy that the error of closure is no
greater than 1:5,000;

(d) The following existing conditions:
Topography by contours at vertical intervals of not more than 5 feet;
Deed record names of adjoining property owners;

Names of any adjoining subdivisions;

Ll A

Property lines within and adjoining the subdivision;

5. Location and rights-of-way of all existing or platted streets or other public ways,
railroads, easements, watercourses, and buildings either on or adjacent to the property to
be subdivided. Specify whether utility lines are in easements or rights-of-way and show
location of poles or towers;

6. Location of city limits and county lines, if applicable;



7. Location of streams, lakes, swamps, and land subject to flood, based on a 100-year
frequency flood;

8. Location of existing exterior property lines;

9. In case of resubdivisions, a copy of the existing plat with proposed resubdivisions
superimposed thereon;

10. Size and location of existing sewers, water mains, drains, culverts, or other
underground facilities within the street or within the right-of-way of streets or roads
adjoining the tract. Grades and invert (if applicable) elevations of sewers shall be shown:

11. The acreage of each drainage area affecting the proposed subdivision; and

12. All elevations shall refer to mean sea level datum (if available) where public
water and/or public sewers are to be installed.

(e) The following proposed conditions:

1. The location, width, classification, and proposed name of all proposed streets,
alleys, and other public ways. This should include the width of both the paved surface and
the right-of-way;

2. The location and width of ail utility and other types of easements and rights-of-
way;

3. The location, dimensions, and building setback lines of all proposed lots;

4. The location and dimensions of all property proposed to be set aside for a park,
playground, or other public use, or for the common use of property owners in the proposed
subdivision with designation of the purpose thereof, and conditions, if any, of the
dedication or reservation;

5. Sufficient data acceptable to the County Engineer to determine readily the
location, bearing, and length of all lines, and to reproduce the lines upon the ground; the
location of all proposed monuments;

6. Indication of the use of all lots (single-family, 2-family, multi-family, townhouse,
offices, commercial, warehousing, industrial, and the like);

7. Blocks shall be consecutively numbered or lettered in alphabetical order, The
blocks in numbered additions to subdivisions bearing the same name shall be numbered or
lettered consecutively throughout the several additions;

8. Alllots in each block shall be consecutively numbered; and
9. Total number of lots and total length of new streets.

(C} The preliminary plat shall be presented in a similar format to the 1 on the
accompanying sheet. All dimension shall be shown to the nearest 1/10 of a foot and angles
to the nearest minute.



(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988} Penalty, see § 154.999

§ 154.043 CONSTRUCTION PLANS.

(A) Construction plans shall be prepared for ali required improvements by a registered
South Carolina engineer at a convenient scale of not less than 1 inch equals 100 feet.

(B) The construction plans shall include the following if the improvement is proposed in
the subdivision:

(1) Profiles showing existing and proposed elevations along the center lines of all new
roads. The elevation along the center line of existing roads shall be shown within 100 feet
of their intersection with new roads. Approximate radii of all curves, lengths of tangents,
and central angles on all streets;

(2) Where steep slopes exist, the County Engineer may require that cross-sections of all
proposed streets at 100-foot stations shall be shown at 5 points as follows: 1 a line at right
angles to the center line of the street, and the evaluation points shall be at the center of the
street, each property line, and points 25 feet inside each property line;

(3) Plans and profiles showing the locations and typical cross-section of street
pavements, including curbs and gutters, sidewalks, drainage easements, rights-of-way,
manholes, and catch basins; the locations of street trees, street lighting standards, and
street signs; the location, size, and invert elevations of existing and proposed sanitary
sewers, stormwater drains, and fire hydrants, showing connection to any existing or
proposed utility systems; and exact location and size of all water, gas, or other
underground utilities or structures;

(4} Location, size, elevation, and other appropriate description of any existing facilities
or utilities, including, but not limited to, existing streets, sewers, drains, water mains,
easements, water bodies, streams, and other pertinent features such as swamps, railroads,
buildings, at the point of connection to proposed facilities and utilities within the
subdivisions. The water elevations of adjoining lakes or streams at the date of the survey,
and the approximate 100-year flood elevations of the lakes or streams, All public water
and/or public sewers are to be installed;

(5) The acreage of each drainage area affecting the proposed subdivision;

(6) Topography at a contour interval of 2 feet, referred to sea level datum when public
water and/or public sewers are to be installed or portion(s) of the subdivision would be
inundated by a 100-year frequency flood;

(7) All specifications and references required by the construction standards and
specifications of Newberry County, any other local government providing any utility, and
the Department of Health and Environmental Control or the County Health Department;

(8) A site grading plan showing proposed finished contours when any major contour
changes or filling for flood protection are proposed in the subdivision; and



(9) Title, name, address, telephone, and signature of South Carolina Registered
Engineer and Surveyor responsible for the plans and date, including revision dates.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penality, see § 154.999

§ 154.044 FINAL PLAT.

(A) The final plat shall be prepared by a South Carolina Registered Land Surveyor at the
same scale and containing the same information, except for any changes or additions
required by the Planning Commission, as shown on the preliminary plat, except that final
finished contours and the resultant areas subject to inundation by a 100-year flood shall be
shown. The preliminary plat may be used as the final plat if it meets these requirements
and is revised in accordance with the requirements of the Planning Commission. All
revision dates must be shown as well as the following:

(1) Name of owner of record;

(2) Name of subdivision, date, north arrow, and graphic scale;

(3) Name, registration number, and seal of registered surveyor or civil engineer;

(4) Name of municipality or county in which subdivision is located and location map;

(5) Sufficient data to determine readily and reproduce accurately on the ground the
location, bearing, and length of every street and alley line, lot line, easement, right-of-way,
boundary line, and building line whether curved or straight. This shall include the radius,
point of tangent, and other data for curved property lines and curved streets, to an
appropriate accuracy and in conformance with good surveying practice;

(6) Names of owners of record of all adjoining land and all property boundaries, water
courses, streets, easements, utilities, and other such improvements, which cross or form
any boundary line of the tract being subdivided;

(7) Exact boundaries of the tract of land being subdivided shown with bearings and
distances;

(8) Streets and alleys, rights-of-way, percent of grades, and street names;
(9) Rights-of-way or easement; location, widths, and purposes;

(10) Lotlines, minimum building setback lines, and lot and block members;
(11) Parks, school sites, or other public open spaces, if any;

(12) All dimensions shall be to the nearest 1/10 of a foot and angles to the nearest
minute; and

(13) Accurate description of the location of all monuments and markers.



(B) The following signed certificates shall appear on the final plat which is submitted to
the Planning Commission by the subdivider.

(1) Certificate of accuracy.

“I'hereby certify that the plan shown and described hereon is a true and correct survey to
the accuracy required by the Newberry County Subdivision Regulations and the
monuments shown have been placed to the specifications set forth in said regulations.”

Date: __
Registration No.:
Registered Land Surveyor:
(2) Certificate of ownership and dedication.

“Itis hereby certified that I am (we are) the owner (s) of the property shown and described
hereon and that I (we) hereby dedicate all streets, alleys, walks, parks, rights-of-way and
easements, and other sites to public or private use as noted.”

Date: __
Owner:
Owner:
(3) The following signed certificate.

“I hereby certify that the streets, curbs, sidewalks, drainage system, sewer system and
water system in Subdivision as shown on the Plat dated ___, preparedby ____ has
been installed in accordance with the preliminary plat (Construction Drawings)
approved_______ "

SEAL

Registered Engineer:

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penalty, see § 154.999

REQUIREMENTS FOR IMPROVEMENTS, RESERVATIONS, AND DESIGN OF TRADITIONAL
SUBDIVISIONS

§ 154.055 GENERAL IMPROVEMENTS.

(A) Conformance to applicable rules and regulations. In addition to the requirements
established herein, all subdivision plats shall comply with the following laws, rules, and
regulations:



(1) All applicable statutory provisions;
(2) All other applicable laws of the appropriate jurisdictions;

(3) The Official Master Plan, Official Map, Public Utilities Plan, and Capital
Improvements Program of the local government, including all streets, drainage systems,
and parks shown on the Official Map or Master Plan as adopted;

(4) The special requirements of these regulations and any rules of the Health
Department and/or appropriate state agencies;

(5) The rules of the State Department of Highways and Public Transportation, if the
subdivision or any lot contained therein abuts a state highway or connecting street;

(6) The rules of the appropriate local jurisdiction if the subdivision or any lot contained
therein abuts a street maintained by the jurisdiction;

(7) The standards and regulations adopted by the County Engineer and all boards,
commissions, agencies, and officials of Newberry County; and

(8) Plat approval may be withheld if a subdivision is not in conformity with the above
guides or policy and purposes of these regulations established in § 154.001.

(B) Self-imposed restrictions. If the owner places restrictions on any of the land
contained in the subdivision greater than those required by these regulations, the
restrictions or reference thereto may be required to be indicated on the subdivision plat, or
the Planning Commission may require that restrictive covenants be recorded with the
County Clerk of Court in a form to be approved by the Newberry County Attorney.

(C) Plats straddling municipal boundaries. Whenever access to the subdivision is
required across land in another local government, the Planning Commission may request
assurance from the County Attorney that access is legally established, and from the County
Engineer that the access road is adequately improved, or that a performance bond has been
duly executed and is sufficient in amount to assure the construction of the access road. In
general, lot lines should be laid out so as not to cross municipal or county boundary lines.

(D) Monuments. A steel or iron pipe or reinforcing rod not less than 1/2 inch in diameter
and 30 inches in length, or a cement bench mark or other bench mark approved by the
State of South Carolina, be set at each change in direction of the boundary survey of the
subdivision, excluding water courses, and at all lot corners. A monument shall also be set at
a point of curve, point of intersection, property corner, point of tangency and reference
point. All markers shall be driven to within 12 inches of the finished grade or flush as
conditions may require.

(E) Subdivision name. The proposed name of the subdivision shall not duplicate, or too
closely approximate phonetically, the name of any other subdivision in the area covered by
these regulations. The Planning Commission shall have final authority to designate the
name of the subdivision which shall be determined at sketch plat approval.



(F) Natural gas. When gas lines are located in a street right-of-way, where possible, such
lines shall be located outside the portion of the street to be surfaced to prevent having to
cut into the paved surface to serve abutting properties.

(G) Street name signs. Street name signs shall be installed at all intersections within a
subdivision. The location and design shall be approved by the Planning Commission and
shall meet all county specifications.

(H) Sediment control. The Newberry County Engineer shall review subdivision
proposals to ensure conformance with the Sediment Control Ordinance for Newberry
County, South Carolina. Also refer to § 154.041(C).

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penalty, see § 154.999

§ 154.056 LOT IMPROVEMENTS.

(A) Lotarrangement. The lot arrangement shall be such that there will be no foreseeable
difficulties, for reasons of topography or other conditions, in securing building permits to
build on all lots in compliance with health regulations and in providing driveway access to
buildings on the lots from an approved street.

(B) Lotdimensions.

(1) Lot width. The minimum lot width at the building setback line shall be as shown on
the following table in division (C) below. The width between side lot lines at the point
where they intersect with the street right-of-way shall be not less than 75% of the required
width (see division (B)(3) below for flag lot requirements). Where lots front on the turn-
around of a cul-de-sac, the width between side lot lines where they intersect with the street
right-of-way shall not be less than 20 feet. Corner lots shall be at least 5 feet wider than
interior lots; provided, however, the maximum required width of a corner lot shall be 100
feet.

(2) Minimum lot area. The minimum lot area shall be as shown in the following
schedule unless the Health Department requires greater lot dimensions.

(3) Flaglots. Flag lots are allowed, subject to the following restrictions.

(a) The area of the access appendage may not count toward the minimum square
footage required for the lot.

(b) Access easements (easements across other parcels of land to gain access for a
landlocked parcel) are not allowed.

(c) All driveway connections to public roads must comply with South Carolina
Department of Highways and Public Transportation regulations.

(d) The access appendage for a lot smaller than 2 acres shall be at least 20 feet wide
along its entire length.



(e) The access appendage for a lot 2 acres or larger shall be at least 50 feet wide along
its entire length.

(f) The access appendage of a 2 acre or larger flag lot shall be directly aligned with or
separated at least 150 feet from any existing or proposed road, as measured from center
line to center line. Adequate sight distance shall be provided from the driveway along the
intersecting road right-of-way.

(8) The access appendage of a flag lot may not be contiguous to the access appendage
of another flag lot, unless both flag lots are each less than 2 acres. The paired flag lots may
not be further subdivided.

(h) Successive flag lot access appendages or pairs of flag lot access appendages along
a continuous road right-of-way shall be separated by a minimum of 100 feet of frontage
(measured from access appendage center line to center line) along the road right-of-way.

(i) The access appendage of a flag lot shall not exceed 400 feet in total length.

(4) Minimum building setback line. In the absence of other regulations which would
apply, the minimum building setback line from the street right-of-way shall be no less than
30 feet.

(C) Table.

Dwelling Type

Utilities Available

Minimum Width of Lot at Building Setback Line (Feet)
Minimum Area (Square Feet)
1-Family

Public Water; Public Sewerage
60

7,500

1-Family

Public Water; Private Sewerage
60

*

1-Family

Private Water; Private Sewerage



100

%

2-Family

Public Water; Public Sewerage

60

10,000

Multi-Family

Public Water;** Public Sewerage**

100

5,000 for first family; 2,500 each additional family
NOTES TO TABLE:

* As approved by the Health Department

** Required

(D} Street access.

(1} Alllots hereafter established shall front or abut on a street, either an existing
publicly-owned and maintained street or a new public street which conforms to the
requirements of these regulations, or a private street with the approval of the Planning
Commission.

(2) The Planning Commission, in cases where the developer can demonstrate that
physical or legal factors beyond his or her control preclude the building of roads to the
standards of this chapter, or where the nature of the development would require the
limiting of access, may approve private roads. The following requirements for private roads
shall apply.

(a) The developer must institute adequate legal and financial means to ensure that
the upkeep of these roads will not become the responsibility of Newberry County or the
State of South Carolina.

(b) Private streets shall be constructed to the roadbed, road surface, and pavement
width standards of the South Carolina Department of Highways and Public Transportation.

(c) Through roads that connect existing roads may not be approved if they are likely
to be used by the general public.

(d) The Planning Commission may impose additional requirements to ensure
adequate access by residents on private roads.



(E) Lotdrainage. Lots shall be laid out so as to provide positive drainage away from all
buildings, and individual lot drainage shall be coordinated with the general storm drainage
pattern for the area. Drainage shall be designed so as to avoid concentration of storm
drainage water from each lot to adjacent lots.

(F) Fencing. Each subdivider and/or developer shall be required to furnish and install
fences wherever the Planning Commission determines that an unreasonably hazardous
condition may exist. The fences shall be constructed according to standards established by
the County Engineer and shall be noted as to height and material on the final plat. No final
plat shall be approved until the fence improvements have been duly installed.

(G) Water bodies and watercourses. If a tract being subdivided contains a water body, or
portion thereof, lot lines shall be so drawn as to distribute the entire ownership of the
water body among the adjacent lots. The Planning Commission may approve an alternative
plan whereby the ownership of and responsibility for safe maintenance of the water body
is so placed that it will not become a local government responsibility. No more than 25% of
the minimum area of a lot required under this chapter may be satisfied by land which is
under water, Where a watercourse separates the buildable area of a lot from the street by
which it has access, provisions shall be made for installation of a culvert or other structure
of design approved by the County Engineer.

(H) Easements. Easements having a minimum width of 7% feet and located along the
side or rear lot lines shall be provided as required for utility lines and underground mains
and cables.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penalty, see § 154.999

§ 154.057 STREETS.
(A) General requirements.

(1) Frontage onimproved streets. No subdivision shall be approved unless the area to
be subdivided shall have frontage on and access from an existing street which is:

(a) An existing state, county, or city owned and maintained street; or

(b) A street shown upon a plat approved by the Planning Commission and recorded in
the County Clerk of Court’s office. The street or highway must be suitably improved as
required by these regulations and specifications, or be secured by a performance bond
required under these subdivision regulations with the width and right-of-way required by
these subdivision regulations.

(2) Grading and improvement plan. All public roads shall be graded and improved and
conform to the standards established for roads by the Newberry County Council. All
roadway designs and specifications shall be approved by the County Engineer, in
accordance with the construction plans required to be submitted prior to final plat
approval.



(3) Topography and arrangement.
(a) Roads shall be related appropriately to the topography.

(b) Minor streets shall be curved whenever possible to avoid uniformity of lot
appearance. All streets shall be arranged so as to obtain as many as possible of the building
sites at, or above, the grades of the streets. Grades of streets shall conform as closely as
possible to the original topography. A combination of steep grades and curves shall be
avoided. Specific standards are contained in the design standards of these regulations.

(c) The location and width of all proposed streets shall be in conformity with official
plans and maps and with existing amended plans of the Planning Commission.

(d) All thoroughfares shall be properly related to special traffic generators such as
industries, business districts, schools, churches, and shopping centers; to population
densities; and to the pattern of existing and proposed land uses.

(e) Minor streets shall be laid out to conform as much as possible to the topography,
to discourage use by through traffic, to permit efficient drainage and utility systems, and to
require the minimum number of streets necessary to provide convenient and safe access to

property.

(f) The rigid rectangular gridiron street pattern need not necessarily be adhered to,
and the use of curvilinear streets, cul-de-sacs, or U-shaped streets shall be encouraged
where the use will result in a more desirable layout.

(g) Streetextensions:

1. The street layout of the proposed subdivision shall provide for the continuation
or projection of streets already existing in areas adjacent to the area being subdivided
unless the Planning Commission deems the continuation or extension undesirable for
specific reasons of topography or design;

2. Where the Planning Commission determines that it is necessary to provide street
access to adjoining properties, and that other means of access are not reasonably available
to the adjoining properties, proposed streets shall be extended by dedication to the
boundaries of the properties. Where the Planning Commission deems it necessary, the
dead-end streets shall be provided with an approved temporary turnaround having a
radius of at least 40 feet; and

3. The street system for the proposed subdivision shall provide for extending
existing streets at the same or greater width, but in no case shall a street extension be of
less width than the minimum width required in these regulations for a street in its
category.

(h) Inbusiness and industrial developments, the streets and other accessways shall
be planned in connection with the grouping of buildings, location of rail facilities, and the
provision of alleys, truck loading and maneuvering areas, and walks and parking areas so
as to minimize conflict of movement between the various types of traffic, including
pedestrian.



(4) Blocks.

(a) Blocks shall have sufficient width to provide for 2 tiers of lots of appropriate
depths. Exceptions to this prescribed block width shall be permitted in blocks adjacent to
major streets, railroads, or waterways.

(b) The lengths, widths, and shapes of blocks shall be such as are appropriate for the
locality and the type of development contemplated, but block lengths in residential areas
shall not exceed 2,000 feet, nor be less than 400 feet in length. Wherever practicable,
blocks along major arterials and collector streets shall be not less than 1,000 feet in length.

(c) Inlong blocks, the Planning Commission may require the reservation of an
easement through the block to accommodate utilities, drainage facilities, or pedestrian
traffic.

(d) Pedestrianways or crosswalks, not less than 10 feet wide, may be required by the
Planning Commission through the center of blocks more than 800 feet long where deemed
essential to provide circulation or access to schools, playgrounds, shopping centers,
transportation, or other community facilities.

(e) Blocks designed for industrial uses shall be of a length and width as may be
determined suitable by the Planning Commission for prospective use.

(5) Access to primary arterials. Where a subdivision borders on or contains an existing
or proposed primary arterial, the Planning Commission may require that access to the
streets be limited by 1 of the following means:

(a) The subdivision of lots so as to back onto the primary arterial and front onto a
parallel local street; no access shall be provided from the primary arterial, and screening
shall be provided in a strip of land along the rear property line of the lots;

(b) A series of cul-de-sacs, U-shaped streets, or short loops entered from and
designed generally at right angles to such a parallel street, with the rear lines of their
terminal lots backing onto the major arterial; or

(c) A marginal access or service road (separated from the primary arterial by a
planting or grass strip and having access thereto at suitable points).

(6) Street names.

(a} Streets or roads that are extensions of, or obviously in alignment with, existing
named streets shall bear that name.

(b) The names of new streets and roads shall be subject to the Planning Commission
and approval of County Council and shall not duplicate or be similar in sound to existing
names, irrespective of the use of the suffix street, avenue, circle, way, boulevard, drive,
place, or court or the like.

(7) Permanent dead-end streets.



(a) Where a road does not extend to the boundary of the subdivision and its
continuation is not required by the Planning Commission for access to adjoining property,
its terminus shall normally not be nearer to the boundary than 50 feet.

(b) However, the Planning Commission may require the reservation of an appropriate
easement to accommodate drainage facilities, pedestrian traffic, or utilities.

(¢} A cul-de-sac turnaround shall be provided at the end of a permanent dead-end
street in accordance with county construction standards and specifications. (See division
(B) below.)

(d) For greater convenience to traffic and more effective police and fire protection,
permanent dead-end streets shall, in general, be limited in length in accordance with the
design standards of these regulations.

(8) Alleys. Service alleys or drives may be required in multiple dwellings, commercial
and industrial developments, and shall have a minimum surface treatment width of 15 feet,
but shall not be provided in 1- and 2-family residential developments unless the subdivider
provides evidence satisfactory to the Planning Commission of the need for alleys.

(B) Design standards.
(1) Generally.

(a) Inorder to provide for streets of suitable location, width, and improvement to
accommodate prospective traffic and afford satisfactory access to policy, firefighting,
sanitation and road-maintenance equipment, and to coordinate so as to compose a
convenient system and avoid undue hardships to adjoining properties, the following design
standards for streets are hereby required (street classification may be indicated on the
Major Thoroughfare Plan, or Official Map; otherwise, it shall be determined by the Planning
Commission).

Improvement Rural Residential Urban Residential Non-Residential
Development Development Development

Improvement

Rural Residential Development

Urban Residential Development
Non-Residential Development
Minimum Right-of-Way Width (Feet) (1)
Minor Street

50

50



66

Marginal Access Street
50

50

66

Cul-de-Saclor Loap Street
50

50

66

NOTES TO TABLE:

(1) Right-of-way widths greater than minimum are encouraged because they make for a
safer, more aesthetic, and more comfortable facility and permit future roadway widening
without disrupting abutting property.

Minimum Finished Surface Width (Feet) (2), (3)
Minor Street

20 (1), (4)

23(1)

36

Marginal Access Street

20(1), (1)

23 (1)

36

Cul-de-Sac or Loop Street

20(1),(4)

23 (1)

36

Minimum Finished Surface Width (Feet) (2), (3)
Collector Street

24 (1), (4}



36
50
NOTES TO TABLE:

(1) Pavement widths shown do not provide for on-street parking; service lanes are
intended only for loading and unloading of passengers and goods and for disabled vehicles
and not for the storage of vehicles.

(2) An 18-inch wide grass strip should be provided between the right-of-way boundary and
the outside edge or back of any sidewalk constructed within the right-of-way. This
arrangement will permit the placing of utility poles back of the sidewalk and at the same
time retain a grass strip between the sidewalk and the curb or edge of pavement; both of
these features are highly desirable, particularly from a safety viewpoint.

(3) Measured from the back of each curb or from the low point of valley gutter to low point
of valley gutter.

(4) Measured from edge of paving to edge of paving when a typical State Highway
Department farm-to-market road section is used.

Maximum Grade (Percent)
Minor Street

10

10

6

Marginal Access Street

10

10

6

Cul-de-Sac or Loop Street
8

8

6

Minimum Radius of Curve (Feet)
Minor Street

150



150

200

Marginal Access Street
150

150

200

Cul-de-Sac or Loop Street
100

100

200

Collector Street

200

200

300

Minimum Length of Tangents Between Reverse Curves (Feet)
Minor Street

100

100

200

Marginal Access Street
200

200

200

Cul-de-Sac or L.oop Street
100

100

200

Collector Street



300

300

300

Minimum Sight Distance (Feet)
Minor Street

200

250

250

Marginal Access Street
200

250

250

Cul-de-Sac or Loop Street
200

200

250

Collector Street

250

300

300

Minimum Design Speed (mph)
Minor Street

25

30

30

Marginal Access Street
25

30



30

Cul-de-Sac or Loop Street

20

20

30

Collector Street

30

35

35

Minimum Turnaround (Diameter in Feet)
Cul-de-Sac (Right-of-Way)

100

100

120

Cul-de-Sac (Pave-ment Width)
80

80

100

Cul-de-Sac {(Pave-ment Width, Center Island, Optional)
30

30

30

Maximum Length of Cul-de-Sac
Permanent

1,000

600

600

Temporary



1,000
1,000
1,000

(b) Primary and secondary arterial design standards are as required by the Major
Thoroughfare Plan or Official Map and the South Carolina Department of Highways and
Public Transportation. Normally, the streets will require reservation or dedication of right-
of-way by the subdivider and improvements by others.

(2) Road surfacing and improvements.

(a) After sewer and water utilities have been installed by the developer, the applicant
shall construct curbs and gutter or valley gutters and shall surface or cause to be surfaced,
roadways to the widths prescribed in these regulations. The surfacing shall be of a
character as is suitable for the expected traffic and in harmony with similar improvements
in the expected traffic and in harmony with similar improvements in the surrounding
areas. Types of surface shall be as determined by the County Engineer. Adequate provision
shall be made for culverts, drains, and bridges.

(b) All road surfaces, shoulders, drainage improvements and structures, curbs,
turnarounds, and sidewalks shall conform to all construction standards and specifications
proposed by the Planning Commission, County Engineer, and approved by Newberry
County Council and shall be incorporated into the construction plans required to be
submitted by the developer for plat approval. All roads shall be hard surfaced (portland
cement, concrete, asphaltic concrete, or bituminous wearing) in all new subdivisions and
expansions of, existing subdivisions. The Planning Commission may allow an alternate
surfacing material for rural residential minor streets where it may be shown that an
extreme hardship exists and where the surface is approved by the County Engineer.

(3) Excess right-of-way. Right-of-way widths in excess of the standards designated in
these regulations shall be required whenever, due to topography, additional width is
necessary to provide adequate earth slopes. The slopes shall not be in excess of 2 to 1.

(4) Railroads and limited access highways. Railroad rights-of-way and limited access
highways where so located as to affect the subdivision of adjoining lands shall be treated as
follows:

(a) Inresidential developments, a buffer strip at least 25 feet in depth in addition to
the normal depth of the lot required in the district shall be provided adjacent to the
railroad right-of-way or limited access highway. This strip shall be part of the platted lots
and shall be designated on the plat: This strip is reserved for screening. The placement of
structures hereon is prohibited.

(b) Indevelopments proposed for business, commercial, or industrial uses, the
nearest street extending parallel or approximately parallel to the railroad shall, whenever



practicable, be at a sufficient distance therefrom to ensure suitable depth for commercial or
industrial sites.

(c) Streets parallel to the railroad when intersecting a street which crosses the
railroad at grade shall, to the extent practicable, be at a distance of at Ieast 150 feet from
the railroad right-of-way. The distance shall be determined with due consideration of the
minimum distance required for future separation of grades by means of appropriate
approach gradients.

(5) Intersections.

(a) Streets shall be laid out 50 as to intersect as nearly as possible at right angles. A
proposed intersection of 2 new streets at an angle of less than 75 degrees shall not be
acceptable. An oblique street should be curved approaching an intersection and should be
approximately at right angles for 100 feet from the center line of the through street. Not
more than 2 streets shall intersect at any 1 point unless specifically approved by the
Planning Commission.

(b) Proposed new intersections along 1 side of an existing street shall, whenever
practicable, coincide with any existing intersections on the opposite side of the street.
Street jogs with center line offsets of less than 150 feet shall not be permitted, except
where the intersected street has separated dual drives without median breaks at either
intersection. Where opposing streets intersect collector streets, their alignment shall be
continuous. Intersection of streets shall be at least 800 feet apart.

() Minimum curb radius at the intersection of 2 minor streets shall be at least 20
feet; and minimum curb radius at an intersection involving a collector street shall be at
least 25 feet. Alley intersections and abrupt changes in alignment within a block shall have
the corners cut off in accordance with standard engineering practice to permit safe
vehicular movement.

(d) Intersections shall be designed with a flat grade whenever practical. In hilly or
rolling areas, at the approach to an intersection, a leveling area shall be provided having
not greater than a 3% rate at a distance of 60 feet, measured from the nearest right-of-way
line of the intersecting street.

(e) Where any street intersection will involve earth banks or existing vegetation
inside any lot corner that would create a traffic hazard by limiting visibility, the developer
shall cut the ground and/or vegetation (including trees} in connection with the grading of
the public right-of-way to the extent deemed necessary to provide an adequate sight
distance.

(f) The cross-slopes on all streets, including intersections, shall be no greater than 3%
and no less than 0.5%.

(6) Bridges. Bridges of primary benefit to the applicant, as determined by the Planning
Commission, shall be constructed at the full expense of the applicant and meet the design
requirements of the County Engineer.



(C) Road dedications and reservations.

(1) Street systems in new subdivisions shall be laid out so as to eliminate or avoid new
perimeter half-streets. Where an existing half-street is adjacent to a new subdivision, the
other haif of the street shall be improved and dedicated by the subdivider. The Planning
Commission may authorize a new perimeter street where the subdivider improves and
dedicates the entire required street right-of-way width within his or her own subdivision
boundaries.

(2) Where a subdivision borders an existing narrow road or when the Master Plan or
Official Map indicate plans for realignment or widening a road that would require use of
some of the land in the subdivision, the applicant shall be required to improve and dedicate
at his or her expense the areas for widening or realignment of the roads. The frontage
roads and streets shall be improved and dedicated by the applicant at his or her own
expense to the full width as required by these subdivision regulations.

(3) (a) When a subdivision contains a part or all of the proposed location of a new
street shown in the local governments major thoroughfare plan, the necessary right-of-way
shall be reserved for this new street and the design of the subdivision shall reflect the
future existence of this street.

Dedication of this right-of-way is not required. However, this reserved right-of-way shall
not count in satisfying the setback and lot size requirements of this chapter.

(b) When calculations indicate that curb capacities are exceeded at a point, no further
allowance shall be made for flow beyond that point, and basins shall be used to intercept
flow at that point. Surface water drainage patterns shall be shown for each block.

(D) Nature of storm water facilities.

(1) Location. The applicant may be required by the Planning Commission to carry away
by pipe or open ditch any spring or surface water that may exist either previously to, or as
a result of, the subdivision. The drainage facilities shall be located in the road right-of-way
where feasible, or in perpetual unobstructed easements of appropriate width, and shall be
constructed in accordance with the local governments standards and specifications.

(2) Accessibility to public storm sewers.

(a) Where a public storm sewer is accessible, the applicant shall install storm sewer
facilities, or if no outlets are within a reasonable distance, adequate provision shall be
made for the disposal of storm waters, subject to the specifications of the County Engineer,
Inspection of facilities shall be conducted by the County Engineer.

(b) Ifa connection to a public storm sewer will be provided eventually, as determined
by the County Engineer and the Planning Commission, the developer shall make
arrangements for future storm water disposal by a public utility system at the time the plat
receives final approval. Provision for the connection shall be incorporated by inclusion in
the performance bond required for the subdivision plat.



(3) Accommodation of upstream drainage areas. A culvert or other drainage facility
shall in each case be large enough to accommodate potential run-off from its entire
upstream drainage area, whether inside or outside the subdivision. The County Engineer
shall determine the necessary size of the facility, based on the provisions of the
construction standards and specifications assuming conditions of maximum potential
watershed development expected in the Master Plan.

(4) Effect on downstream drainage areas. The County Engineer shall also study the
effect of each subdivision on existing downstream drainage facilities outside the area of the
subdivision. Local government drainage studies, together with the other studies as shall be
appropriate, shall serve as a guide to needed improvement. Where it is anticipated that the
additional run-off incident to the development of the subdivision will overload an existing
downstream drainage facility, the Planning Commission may withhold approval of the
subdivision until provision has been made for the improvement of the potential condition
in the sum as the Planning Commission shall determine. No subdivision shall be approved
unless adequate drainage will be provided to an adequate drainage watercourse or facility.

(5) Flood plain areas. Whenever a plat is submitted for an area which is subject to
inundation by a 100-year frequency flood, the Planning Commission may approve the
subdivision, provided that the applicant fills the affected area (according to a method
approved by the County Engineer) so as to provide a building site on all lots which is at
least 1 foot above the 100-year frequency flood level. The Planning Commission may also
approve other methods of flood prevention which provide an equivalent degree of
protection. In no case, however, shall the Planning Commission permit any filling or
impeding of the water in the floodway of any watercourse.

(E) Dedication of drainage easements.

(1) General requirements. Where a subdivision is traversed by a watercourse,
drainageway, channel, or stream, there shall be provided a storm water easement or
drainage right-of-way conforming substantially to the lines of the watercourse, and of the
width and construction or both as will be adequate for the purpose. Wherever possible, it is
desirable that the drainage be maintained by an open channel with landscaped banks and
adequate width for maximum potential volume of flow.

(2) Drainage easements.

(a) Where topography or other conditions are such as to make impractical the
inclusion of drainage facilities within road rights-of-way, perpetual unobstructed
easements at least 12 feet in width for the drainage facilities shall be provided across
property outside the road lines and with satisfactory access to the road. Easements shall be
indicated on the plat. Drainage easements shall be carried from the road to a natural
watercourse or to other drainage facilities.

(b) When a proposed drainage system will increase the maximum flow of water
across private land outside the subdivision, appropriate drainage rights must be secured
and indicated on the plat.



(¢) Low-lyinglands along watercourses subject to flooding or overflowing during
storm periods, included in areas for dedication, shall be preserved and retained in their
natural state as drainage ways.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penalty, see § 154.999

§ 154.058 WATER FACILITIES.
(A) General requirements,

(1) Necessary action shall be taken by the applicant to extend an existing public water
system for the purpose of providing a water supply system capable of providing domestic
water use and fire protection.

(2) Where a public water main is accessible, the subdivider shall install adequate water
facilities (including fire hydrants) subject to the specifications of the state or local
authorities. All water mains with fire hydrants shall be at least 6 inches in diameter.

(3) Water main extensions shall be approved by the officially designated agency of the
state or local government.

(4) To facilitate the above, the location of all fire hydrants, all water supply
improvements, and the boundary lines of proposed districts, indicating all improvements
proposed to be served, shall be shown on the preliminary plat, and the cost of installing
same shall be included in any bond to be furnished by the developer.

(5) When the water main is located under the street surface to serve the abutting lots, a
connection shall be stubbed out to the property line to serve each lot before the street is
surfaced.

(B) Individual wells and central water systems.

(1) In rural residential subdivisions, at the discretion of the Planning Commission, if a
public water system is not availabie, individual wells may be used or a central water
system provided in such a manner that an adequate supply of potable water will be
available to every lot in the subdivision. Individual wells and central water systems shall be
approved by the appropriate health authorities. Orders of approval shall be submitted to
the Planning Commission.

(2) If the Planning Commission requires that a connection to a public water main be
eventually provided as a condition to approval of an individual well or central water
system, the applicant shall make arrangements for future water service at the time the plat
received final approval. Performance or cash bonds may be required to insure compliance.

(C) Fire hydrants. Fire hydrants shall be required for all subdivisions, except those
coming under division (B) above. Fire hydrants shall be located no more than 1,000 feet
apart and within 500 feet of any structure and shall be approved by the applicable
protection unit. To eliminate future street openings, all underground utilities for fire



hydrants, together with the fire hydrants themselves and all other supply improvements,
shall be installed before any final paving of a street shown on the subdivision plat.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penalty, see § 154.999

§ 154.059 SEWERAGE FACILITIES.

(A) General requirements. The applicant shall install sanitary sewer facilities in a
manner prescribed by the local government construction standards and specifications. All
plans shall be designed in accordance with the rules, regulations, and standards of the
County Engineer, Health Department, and other appropriate agency. Plans shali be
approved by the above agencies.

(B) Central sewerage system requirements.

(1) Where public sanitary sewerage systems are reasonably accessible, the applicant
shall connect with same and provide sewers accessible to each lot in the subdivision. When
the sewer line is located in a street right-of-way and it will be necessary to cut into the
street surface to serve the abutting lots, a connection shall be stubbed out to the property
line to serve each lot prior to surfacing the street.

(2) Where public sanitary sewerage systems are not reasonably accessible but will
become available within a reasonable time (not to exceed 5 years), the applicant may
choose 1 of the following alternatives:

(a) Central sewerage system, the maintenance cost to be assessed against each
property benefitted. Where plans for future public sanitary sewerage systems exist, the
applicant shall install the sewer lines, laterals, and mains to be in permanent conformance
with the plans and ready for connection to the public sewer mains; or

(b) Individual disposal systems, provided the applicant shall install sanitary sewer
lines, laterals, and mains from the street curb to a point in the subdivision boundary where
a future connection with the public sewer main shall be made. Sewer lines shall be laid
from the house to the street line, and a connection shall be available in the home to connect
when the public sewers become available. The sewer systems shall be capped until ready
for use and shall conform to all plans for installation of the public sewer system, where
such exist, and shall be ready for connection to the public sewer main.

(3) Where sanitary sewer systems are not reasonably accessible and will not become
available for a period in excess of 15 years, the applicant may install sewerage systems as
follows:

(a) Urban residential subdivisions - a central sewerage system only. No individual
disposal system will be permitted. Where plans exist for a public sewer system to be built,
for a period in excess of 5 years, the applicant shall install all sewer lines, laterals, and
mains to be in permanent conformance with the plans and ready for connection to the
public sewer main; and



(b) Rural residential subdivisions - individual disposal systems or central sewerage
systems may be used.

(C) Individual disposal system requirements. If public sewer facilities are not available
and individual disposal systems are proposed, minimum lot areas shall conform to the
requirements of this chapter and percolation tests and test holes shall be made as directed
by the local government Health Officer and the results submitted to the Health Department.
The individual disposal system, including the size of the septic tanks and size of the tile
fields or other secondary treatment device, shall also be approved by the Health Officer.

(D) Design criteria for sanitary sewers.

(1) These design criteria are not intended to cover extraordinary situations. Deviations
will be allowed and may be required in those instances where considered justified by the
County Engineer.

(2) Sanitary sewer shall be designed and installed to the design standards and
specifications of the city, county, or public service district into whose sewer system the
subdivision is connecting and all design standards and specifications of the appropriate
State Health Agency controlling sewer systems.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penalty, see § 154.999

§ 154.060 SIDEWALKS.
(A) Required improvements.

(1) Sidewaiks shall be included within the dedicated nonpavement right-of-way of ait
roads as shown in the table in division (B} below.

(2) Sidewalks shall be improved as required in § 154.057(B)(2). of these regulations. A
median strip of grassed or landscaped areas at least 2 feet wide is recommended to
separate all sidewalks from adjacent curbs or the edge of street pavement.

(B) Pedestrian accesses.

(1) The Planning Commission may require, in order to facilitate pedestrian access from
the roads to schools, parks, playgrounds, or other nearby roads, perpetual unobstructed
easements at least 20 feet in width.

(2) Easements shall be indicated on the plat.

Sidewalks Required*
Nature of Road

Rural Residential Development



Urban Residential Development
Non-Residential Businesses/ Industrial
Cul-de-Sac

Optional

Optional

Both Sides

Minor Road

Optional

Optional

Both Sides

Collector Road

Optional

Optional

Both Sides

Marginal Access Road

Optional

Optional

1 Side

* Sidewalks wherever provided shall be at least 4 feet in width.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

§ 154.061 RECREATION.

It shall be the intent of these regulations to encourage that adequate space be set aside or
opportunities provided for recreation and open space in residential subdivisions.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

§ 154.062 NONRESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISIONS.



(A) Generally. If a proposed subdivision includes land that is proposed for commercial or
industrial purposes, the layout of the subdivisions with respect to the land shall make the
provision as the Planning Commission may require.

(B) Standards. In addition to the principles and standards in these regulations, which are
appropriate to the planning of all subdivisions, the applicant shall demonstrate to the
satisfaction of the Commission that the street, parcel, and block pattern proposed is
specifically adapted to the uses anticipated and takes into account other uses in the vicinity.
The following principles and standards shall be observed.

(1) Proposed industrial parcels shall be suitable in area and dimensions to the types of
industrial development anticipated.

(2) Street rights-of-way and pavement shall be adequate to accommodate the type
volume of traffic anticipated to be generated thereupon.

(3) Special requirements may be imposed by Newberry County with respect to street,
curb, gutter, and sidewalk design and construction.

(4) Special requirements may be imposed by the local government with respect to the
installation of public utilities, including water, sewer, and storm water drainage.

(5) Every effort shall be made to protect adjacent residential areas from potential
nuisance from a proposed commercial or industrial subdivision, including the provision of
extra depth in parcels packing up on existing or potential residential development and
provisions for a permanently landscaped buffer strip when necessary.

(6) Streets carrying nonresidential traffic, especially truck traffic, shall not normally be
extended to the boundaries of adjacent existing or potential residential areas.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penaity, see § 154.999

§ 154.063 SURETY IN LIEU OF COMPLETION OF IMPROVEMENTS.

(A) Inlieu of the completion of the physical development and installation of the required
improvements previous to the final approval of a plat, the County Council, or its designee,
may accept a bond, in an amount and with surety and conditions satisfactory to the Council
or its designee, providing for and securing to the county the actual construction and
installation of the improvements and utilities within a period specified by the Newberry
County Council, or its designee, and expressed in the bond.

(B} The nature and the amount of the surety and procedure shall be as determined by
the County Council.

(C) The bonding of a subdivision project prior to final plat approval shall authorize the
sale, conveyance, or transfer of lots within the subdivision, in addition to the use of the lots
as legal building sites.



(D) To facilitate the sale, conveyance, or transfer of lots within a bonded subdivision, the
developer must submit an appropriate number of bonded plats for recording by the Clerk
of Court.

(E) Extensions of the period of time, which the developer has to complete the
subdivision under bond, may be granted by the Planning Commission or by Newberry
County Council, or its designee.

(F) The developer is solely responsible for the operation and maintenance of any and all
roads, water systems, sewer systems, recreational facilities, or drainage facilities proposed
to be conveyed to a public agency, until final plat approval or their acceptance by the
appropriate public agency.

(G} Any agreements between the developer and prospective property owners, such as
restrictive covenants, road maintenance agreements, mandatory homeowners’ association
agreements, or the like, must be available for recording with the bonded final plat.

(H) All building permits issued between bonded final plat and final plat approval shall
have as a special condition that no final inspections or certificates of occupancy shall be
issued until the building site is served by an approved source of water, sewer, electricity,
and gas (if applicable).

(I) For consideration of all approvals of sureties or bonds, or of requests for extensions
of time to act, requiring action by Newberry County Council, the Council hereby designates
the County Administrator as its agent to approve or disapprove such bonds or sureties, and
such requests for extensions of time to act. Within 30 days of the date of his or her decision,
but not thereafter, or if more than 45 days have elapsed since the bond, surety or request
for extension of time was submitted and no action has been taken thereon, any aggrieved
party may submit a petition to the Clerk to County Council requesting a review by County
Council of the action of the County Administrator, or for direct approval of the surety or
bond or request for extension of time, if no action has been taken. The decision of County
Council shall be final.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988; Am. Ord. 04-12-08, passed 7-16-2008) Penalty, see §
154.999

SPECIAL SUBDIVISIONS

§ 154.075 INTENT.

(A) Itis not the intent of these regulations to freeze new development into any single
type of design.

(B) Itis, however, the intent of these regulations to ensure that all new developments
shall contribute to the building of economically sound and desirable living areas within the
community with all necessary services and facilities.



(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

§ 154.076 AUTHORITY TO MODIFY STANDARDS.

In order to provide the subdivider with maximum flexibility in the design and character of
new residential developments, the Planning Commission is hereby authorized to modify
the standards and requirements of these regulations in the case of a plan for a special
subdivision or planned neighborhood unit, which in the judgment of the Planning
Commission provides adequate public spaces for the circulation, recreation, light, air, and
service needs of the tract when fully developed and populated, and which also provides the
covenants or other legal provisions as will assure conformity to the achievement of the
plan.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

§ 154.077 MAINTENANCE OF SPIRIT OF REGULATIONS.

Any development or subdivision approved under §§ 154.075 et seq. shall maintain the
objectives, purposes, and intent of these regulations.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penalty, see § 154.999

GROUP DEVELOPMENTS

§ 154.090 GENERALLY.

(A) Inorder to prevent the creation of traffic hazards, ensure the provision of off-street
parking, and provision of necessary utilities, plans for group developments such as
shopping centers, industrial parks, mobile home parks, and apartment complexes where
the site is not subdivided into lots and public streets, but is divided into 2 or more building
sites, shall be submitted to the Planning Commission for review and approval.

(B) These regulations are considered minimum and may be superseded by more
restrictive regulations, if any.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penalty, see § 154.999

§ 154.091 PROCEDURES FOR GROUP DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL.
(A) Site plan.



(1) The developer shall submit at least 6 copies of a site plan to the administrative
official for review and approval. The administrative official shall approve or disapprove the
site plan within 15 days.

(2) ifthe site plan is disapproved by the administrative official or if the administrative
official requires changes with which the developer disagrees, the developer may submit the
site plan to the Planning Commission at its next regular meeting. The Planning Commission
shall review and approve, disapprove, or approve with modifications the site plan within
30 days of the date of the meeting. Pertinent comments and recommendations shall be
noted in the minutes of the Planning Commission meeting.

(3) If the administrative official to the Planning Commission fails to act within 15 days
after submission of the site plan, the administrative official must inform the developer of
the date on which action shall be taken, but the extension of time shall not exceed 15 days.
Failure to act within these time limits shall be deemed to constitute site plan approval, and
a certificate to that effect shall be issued by the Planning Commission upon demand.

(B} Construction drawings.

(1) The developer shall submit at least 8 copies of the construction drawings of all or a
portion of the development given site plan approval, along with the necessary supporting
data to the administrative official to the Planning Commission.

(2) (a) Upondetermination that the construction drawings conform to the approved
site plan, the administrative official shall submit these plans to the following agencies (as
appropriate) for review and approval:

1. County Health Department;

2. County Engineer;

3. City Engineer (if a municipal water or sewer system is involved);
4. Public Service District (if any is involved); and

5. South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control.

(b) These reviewing agencies shall report their finding to the Planning Commission
within 30 days after receipt of the construction drawings.

(3) Upon receipt of the reports from the above agencies, the administrative official to
the Planning Commission shall approve, disapprove, or approve with modifications the
construction drawings within 60 days after submission of the plans.

(4) If the construction drawings are disapproved by the administrative official or if the
administrative official requires changes with which the developer disagrees, the developer
may submit the construction drawings to the Planning Commission at its next regular
meeting. The Planning Commission shall review and approve, disapprove, or approve with
modifications the construction drawings within 30 days of the date of the meeting.
Pertinent comments and recommendations shall be noted in the minutes of the Planning



Commission, and the reasons for disapproval or modification shall be promptly delivered
in writing to the applicant and to the land owner.

(5) If the administrative official to the Planning Commission fails to act within 60 days
after submission of the construction drawings, the plans shall be automatically approved,
and a certificate to that effect shall be issued by the Planning Commission upon demand.

(6) The Planning Commission shall not act to override the requirements of other
agencies or departments. The Commission may seek to bring agreement in case of conflict
between the various reviewing agencies and the developer.

(C) Final approval.

(1} After completion of the physical development of all or part of the area shown on the
approved construction drawings, the developer or his or her representative shall submit to
the administrative official to the Planning Commission 8 copies of the as built drawings of
the development,

(2} Upon determination that the as built drawings conform to the approval
construction drawings, the administrative official shall submit these plans to the same
agencies which reviewed the construction drawings. These reviewing agencies shall report
their findings to the Planning Commission within 30 days after receipt of the as built
drawings.

(3) Upon receipt of the reports from the above agencies, the administrative official to
the Planning Commission shall approve, disapprove, or approve with modifications the as
built drawings within 60 days after submission of the plans. In no case shall the Planning
Commission disapprove the as built drawings of a group development which:

(a) Meet the requirements of a group development as set forth in these regulations;
(b) Conform to the approved construction drawings; and
(c) Have all the required improvements installed and approved.

(4) If the as built drawings are disapproved by the administrative official or if the
administrative official requires changes with which the developer disagrees, the developer
may submit the as built drawings to the Planning Commission at its next regular meeting.
The Planning Commission shall review and approve, disapprove, or approve with
modifications the as built drawings within 30 days of the date of the meeting. Pertinent
comments and recommendations shall be noted in the minutes of the Planning
Commission.

(5) If the administrative official to the Planning Commission fails to act within 60 days
after submission of the as built drawings, the plan shall be automatically approved and a
certificate to the effect shall be issued by the Planning Commission upon demand.

(6) The Planning Commission shall not act to override the requirements of other
agencies or county departments. The Planning Commission may seek to bring agreement in
cases of conflict between the various reviewing agencies and the developer.



(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

§ 154.092 GENERAL PLAT INFORMATION.

(A) Site plan. A site plan shall contain all of the following information, and shall be
defined as the document containing the information about a particular group development
of property:

(1) Total acreage in the tract proposed for group development and a statement of the
total contiguous acreage owned by the developer;

(2) Tentative access and/or street layout;

(3) Approximate rights-of-way of existing and proposed streets, alleys, easements, and
other rights-of-way;

(4) Typical arrangement of existing and proposed buildings and structures;
(5) Existing and proposed uses of land throughout the tract;
(6) Existing uses of land and all existing street intersections surrounding the tract;

(7) Topography in terms of mean sea level by contours at vertical intervals of not more
than 5 feet and extending at least 100 feet outside the tract (if access to adjoining land can
be obtained);

(8) Name, date, north point, and graphic scale of not less than 200 feet to 1 inch;

(9) A vicinity map at a scale of not less than 1 inch equals 1 mile showing the
relationship of the proposed group development to surrounding development, especially
schools, parks, and shopping areas. The scale of the vicinity map should be shown on the
site plan drawing; and

(10) Asite evaluation shall be submitted with the site plan. For developments
exceeding 5 acres in size, the elevation data for a 100-year flood shall be included.

(B) Construction drawings.

(1) A plat of the property drawn to a scale of at least 100 feet to 1 inch, and shall
include the name of the development, north point, graphic scale, and date;

(2} Alocation map at a scale of 1 inch to 1,000 feet showing the parcel of land, the
location of all buildings, parking areas, and roadways and all adjacent road rights-of-way.
The scale of the location map should be shown on the construction drawings;

(3) The shape, dimensions, and location of all buildings and property lines, existing and
proposed, on the parcel;

(4) The nature (commercial, industrial, and the like} of the proposed uses of the
buildings and/or land;



(5) Topography in terms of mean sea level by contours at vertical intervals of not more
than 5 feet;

(6) The location and dimensions of off-street parking and loading spaces and the
means of ingress and egress to and from the spaces;

(7) The location and size of all proposed utilities and storm drainage facilities;
(8) A statement of variances requested from any section or subsection of § 154.093;

(9) Any other information as the Planning Commission may deem necessary because of
the physical characteristics peculiar to the particular development; and

(10) Construction drawing should be presented in a similar format to the
accompanying sheet.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penalty, see § 154.999

§ 154.093 STANDARDS.
The following standards shall be used in reviewing the developments.
(A) Minimum off-street parking requirements.

(1) Residential uses - 2 spaces per dwelling unit, unless conditions warrant less and are
approved by the Planning Commission;

(2) Commercial uses - 1 space for each 300 square feet of gross floor area; and
(3) Industrial uses - 1 space for 800 square feet of gross floor area.
(B) Setback requirements.
(1) Frontyard - 35 feet minimum;
(2) Side yard - 15 feet minimum; and
(3) Rearyard - 15 feet minimum.
(C) Internal design and spacing.

(1) All buildings shall be at least 20 feet apart; but at least 40 feet apart when front-to-
front or rear-to-rear; and 100 feet when front-to-rear.

(2) No dwelling or building other than accessory structures in a group housing
development shall be situated as to face the rear of another building on an adjoining lot for
a distance of 100 feet.

(3) In residential group developments, no single row of dwelling units shall be greater
than 200 feet in length.



(4) All distances are measured from structure to structure.

(D) Water and sewer. Adequate provisions for water supply and sanitary sewerage shall
be installed by the developer according to the plans and specifications approved by the
proper authorities,

(E) Residential area requirements. Shall have a minimum of 5,000 square feet for the
first dwelling unit, and 2,500 square feet for each additional dwelling unit.

(F) Access and egress. Shall conform with the Driveway Regulations of the South
Carolina Department of Highways and Public Transportation.

(G) Screening. Group housing projects shall be effectively screened along the side and
rear property line, where adjoining property is developed as single-family residential or
commercial, by either:

(1) A strip of at least 10 feet wide, densely planted (or having equivalent natural
growth] with shrubs or trees at least 4 feet high at the time of planting, of a type that will
form a year-round dense screen at least 6 feet high;

(2) Anopaque wall or barrier or uniformly painted fence at least 6 feet high; or
(3) A suitable alternative approved by the Planning Commission.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penalty, see § 154.999

§ 154.094 ENFORCEMENT.

(A) No building permit shall be issued until the construction drawings for the group
development have been approved by the Planning Commission.

(B) No certificate of approval for occupancy shall be issued until the as built drawings for
the group development have been given final approval by the Planning Commission.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

APPLICATION OF REGULATIONS

§ 154.105 GENERALLY.

From and after the adoption of these regulations and notification of the office of the Clerk
of Court for Newberry County:

(A) No subdivision plat shall be filed with or recorded by the office of the Clerk of Court
until the plat has been given final plat approval by the Planning Commission according to
the procedures set forth in these regulations;



(B) No street right-of-way shall be accepted, opened, or maintained in any subdivision
established hereafter which does not meet the requirements of these regulations;

(C) No building permit shall be issued for buildings in any traditional subdivision
established hereafter unless a final plat has been approved by the Planning Commission or
unless an application for exemption has been approved by the administrative official, or
except as provided in § 154.023(D);

(D) No building permit shall be issued for buildings in any group development
established hereafter unless a preliminary plan of the group development has been
approved by the Planning Commission; and

(E) No certificate of approval for occupancy shall be issued for any group development
established hereafter unless a final plan of the group development has been approved by
the Planning Commission.

{(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

FEES

§ 154.120 TRADITIONAL SUBDIVISION PROCESSING FEE SCHEDULE.

The following fee shall be paid by the owner or agent of the owner of a proposed
subdivision when the preliminary plat is submitted to the administrative official to the
Planning Commission:

Number of Lots Fees
Above 4 $5 perlot

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988) Penalty, see § 154.999

§ 154.121 GROUP DEVELOPMENT PROCESSING FEE SCHEDULE.

The following fee shall be paid by the developer of a group development or his or her
agent when the preliminary plat is submitted to the administrative official to the Planning
Commission.

(A) Residential group developments.

Number of Dwelling Units Fees



1to 25 $25 per unit
Above 25 lots $625 plus $10 per unit above 25 units

(B) Commercial or industrial group developments.

Number of Buildings Fees
1to5 $25 per building
Above 5 buildings $125 plus $10 per building above 5 buildings

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988} Penalty, see § 154.999

§ 154.122 SPECIAL DEVELOPMENTS PROCESSING FEE SCHEDULE.

The Planning Commission shall determine the amount of the processing fee when it
initially approves the concept of any particular experimental development.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

LEGAL STATUS

§ 154.135 CONFLICT WITH OTHER LAWS.

Whenever the provisions of these regulations impose more restrictive standards than are
required in or under any other ordinance, the regulations herein contained shall prevail.
Whenever the provisions of any other ordinance requires more restrictive standards than
are required herein, the requirements of the regulations shall prevail.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

§ 154.136 GRANDFATHER CLAUSE.

These regulations shall not apply to subdivisions of land which have been accomplished
by deeds or plats or court order recorded in the office of the Clerk of Court for Newberry
County before the effective date of these regulations, or to tracts of land on which the
process of subdivision and development has actually commended as of the effective date of
these regulations, whether or not the plat of the subdivision has been recorded.



(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

§ 154.137 EFFECTIVE DATE.

These regulations shall take effect and be enforced as of 1-1-1989; provided, however,
these regulations shall not apply to any subdivision or part thereof which has been
approved for construction by the Planning Commission prior to the adoption of these
regulations, or to land which has been subdivided by plat, deed, or court order recorded in
the office of the Clerk of Court for Newberry County prior to 1-1-1989.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

§ 154.138 AMENDMENT.

These regulations may be amended after notice and public hearing in the same manner as
prescribed by law for their original adoption.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

§ 154.139 TRANSITION.

In the case of any subdivision or development of property which has already commenced
in any district which is subject to these regulations, and which development would
otherwise be exempt from the application of these regulations by reason of the pre-existing
subdivision activity, a landowner may make application for either preliminary or final plat
approval, as may be appropriate under the circumstances, and upon approval by the
Planning Commission, or County Council, as being in compliance with the other
requirements of these regulations, the owner of the subdivision may voluntarily and
irrevocably elect to come under the jurisdiction of these regulations, and the election shall
be effective with the acceptance of the election by the administrative official or by County
Council.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)

§ 154.999 PENALTY.

(A) Exceptas otherwise provided herein, the owner or agent of the owner, of any land to
be subdivided within the municipality or county who transfers or sells the land by
reference to or exhibition of or by other use of a plat of subdivision of the land before the
plat has been approved by the Planning Commission and recorded in the office of the Clerk
of Court in and for the county, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction
thereof, shall be punished in the discretion of the court; and the description by metes and
bounds in the instrument of transfer or other document used in the process of selling or



transfer shall not exempt the transaction from these penalties. The municipality or county
may enjoin the transfer or sale or agreement by appropriate action.

(B) The provision of this chapter shall not apply within the corporate limits of any
municipality in the County of Newberry, but any such municipality may elect to come under
these provisions, and Newberry County shall administer these regulations in the
municipality at the request of, and with the permission of, the municipality.

(C) Notwithstanding any other provision in this chapter, Newberry County recognizes
that the development of subdivisions requires a substantial investment of money by a
developer, and that it is necessary to advertise and promote a development from the very
earliest planning stages; therefore, it is the intent of these regulations that a developer may
take lot reservations, for a price not to exceed 15% of the proposed final lot price, provided
that no actual ownership interest in a separate lot may be conveyed by deed, or other legal
instrument conveying a possessory interest, to a proposed buyer until the final plat has
been approved as provided in these regulations. All the agreements, or other agreements
for the transfer of a future possessory interest, shall contain a provision that all the moneys
paid to the developer, or to his or her agents, shall be held in a separate escrow account in a
banking institution in the State of South Carolina, and that the funds shall be refunded at
the purchaser's option if the final plat is not approved within a period not to exceed 2 years
from the date of the instrument. Upon demand by Newberry County, its administrative
official, or its Planning Commission, the developer, or its agents, shall supply a certified
statement of the amounts held in the escrow account, or accounts, and the names and
addresses of the persons who paid the funds, or who otherwise have a beneficial interest
therein.

(Ord. 105, passed 12-29-1988)



Table of Contents

ARTICLE |. GENERAL PROVISIONS

§ 154.001.
§ 154.002.
§ 154.003.
§ 154.004.
§ 154.005.
§ 154.006.
§ 154.007.
§ 154.008,
§ 154.009.
§ 154.010.
§ 154,011,

Authority.

Title.

Jurisdiction.

Purpose.

Scope.

Severability.

Relaticn to Other Ordinances.
Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances.
Effective Date.

Reserved.

Reserved.

ARTICLE Il. ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT

§ 154.012.
§ 154.013.
§ 154.014.
§ 154.015.
§ 154.016.
§ 154.017.
§ 154.018.
§ 154.019.
§ 154.020.
§154.021.
§ 154.022.
§154.023.
§ 154.024.

Procedural Responsibilities.

Land Development Administrator.
County Director of Public Works.
County Administrator.

Land Development Review Committee.
County Council.

Joint Planning Commission.
Penalties and Remedies.
Amendments.

Variances.

Appeals.

Reserved.

Reserved.

ARTICLE Hi. SUBMISSION AND APPROVAL PROCEDURES

§ 154.025.
§ 154.026.
§ 154,027,
§154.028.
§ 154.029.
§ 154.030.
§ 154.031.
§ 154.032.
§ 154.033.
§ 154.034.
§ 154.035.
§154.036.
§154.037.

General Procedures.
Determination of Subdivision Type.
Minor Subdivisions.

Pre-application Conference and Sketch Piat Review.

Submission and Review of a Preliminary Plat.

Submission and Review of Final Plats for Major Subdivisions.

Submission and Review of Bonded Final Plats.

Financial Guarantees for Bonded Final Plat Applications.

Recording of Final Plat.

Long-term Maintenance and Performance.
Development Revisions.

Reserved.

Reserved.

ARTICLE IV. SURVEY AND PLAT REQUIREMENTS

§ 154.038. Surveying to Conform to State and County Regulations.

§ 154.039.
§154.040.
§154.041.

Sketch Plat.
Preliminary Plat.
Final Plat.

Newberry County, 5C

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

Discussion Draft 2/12/2024




§ 154.042. Bonded Final Plat.

§ 154.043. Declaration of Restrictive Covenants Required.
§ 154.044. Reserved.

§ 154.045. Reserved.

ARTICLE V., DESIGN STANDARDS AND IMPROVEMENTS
§ 154.046. Standards Are Minimum Requirements.
§ 154.047. General Requirements.
§ 154.048. Lots.
§ 154.049. Streets.
§ 154.050. Easements.
§ 154.051. Blocks.
§ 154.052. Open Space.
§ 154.053. Storm Drainage.
§ 154.054. Eraosion and Sedimentation Control.
§ 154.055. Areas Subject to Flooding.
§ 154.056. Sanitary Sewage Disposal.
§ 154.057. Water Supply.
§ 154.058. Oversized and Off-Site Improvements.
§ 154.059. Maintenance.
§ 154.060. Reserved.
§ 154.061. Reserved.

ARTICLE VI. DEFINITIONS
§ 154.062. General Rules of Construction.
§ 154.063. Definitions.

Newberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024



Article | — General Provisions

§ 154.001. AUTHORITY.

This chapter is adopted pursuant to authority granted in the 1994 "South Carolina Local Government
Comprehensive Planning Enabling Act of 1994, S.C. Code Sections 6-29-310 through 6-29-1200,

§154.002. TITLE.

This chapter shall officially be known, cited, and referred to as the "Newberry County Land Development
Regulations."

§ 154.003. JURISDICTION.

The provisions set forth in this chapter shall apply throughout the unincorporated area of the county, and
to the areas within those incorporated municipalities, which by contract with the county, consent to
have these regulations apply to the subdivision of land within such municipalities.

§ 154.004. PURPOSE,

The purpose of this chapter is to encourage the development of an economically sound and stable county;
to assure the timely provision of required streets, utilities, and other facilities and services to new land
developments; to assure the adequate provision of safe and convenient traffic access and circulation, both
vehicular and pedestrian, in and through new land developments; to assure the provision of needed public
open spaces and building sites in new land developments through the dedication or reservation of land
for recreational, educational, transportation, and other public purposes; and to assure, in general, the
wise and timely development of new areas, and redevelopment of previously developed areas in harmony
with the comprehensive plan of the county.

§ 154.005. SCOPE.

(A)  No subdivision plat or other land development plan shall be approved unless all land intended for
use as building sites can be used safely for building purposes, without danger from flood or other
inundation or from other menaces to health, safety, or public welfare.

(B) No land shall be subdivided, nor shall a plat be recorded for any purpose, nor shall any parcel
resulting from the subdivision of land be sold, shown, or offered for sale or lease, unless the
requirements of this chapter are fully complied with.

(C} The regulations and procedures contained within this code are the minimum provisions for the
protection of the health, safety, and welfare of the general public. This code is not intended to cover all
situations that may be encountered; the subdivider is strongly encouraged to consult national, state,
and local design standards that may apply to the property.

{D) The County Director of Public Works or his designee may require higher standards than those
provided in this ordinance based on the type(s) of proposed uses and the proposed use of roadways
associated with the proposed development.

§ 154.006. SEVERABILITY,

Should any specific section, standard, or provision of this chapter be declared invalid or unconstitutional
by any court of competent jurisdiction, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as
a whole or any part thereof which is not specifically declared to be invalid or unconstitutional. The
other portions of these regulations not affected by the decision of the court shall remain in full force
and effect.

Newberry County, SC
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Droft 9/24/2024 1-3




§ 153.007. RELATION TO OTHER ORDINANCES.

If the provisions of this ordinance conflict with the provisions of any other validly enforceable
ordinance(s), the most stringent provisions shall control.

§ 153.008. REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed to the extent necessary to give
this Ordinance full force and effect.

§ 153.009. EFFECTIVE DATE.

These regulations shall become effective upon the date of their adoption by the County Council of
Newberry County.

§ 154.010. Reserved.
§ 154.011. Reserved.

Article Il — Administration and Enforcement

§ 154.012. PROCEDURAL RESPONSIBILITIES.

Responsibilities related to the administration and enforcement of the Land Development Regulations
are summarized in the following table and detailed in subsections 154.013 through 154.018.

1
1
1

| i R ALOR 1
o ; Joint [

Procedure e : \ "
Minor Subdivisions R/F
Major Subdivisions
Sketch Plat R
Preliminary Plat R
Bonded Final Plat R
Final Plat R F
R
F
R

Land Development Variances A/PH/F ---
Land Development Interpretations A ---
Appeal of Administrative Decision A/PH/F -
Land Development Regulation Amendments R PH/RC F
R = Review, RC = Recommendation, F = Final Decision, A = Hears Appeal, PH = Holds Public Hearing

§ 154.013. LAND DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATOR.

(A)  This chapter shall be administered and enforced by the Land Development Administrator, who
shall have all powers and duties authorized by state law and local ordinance.

(B)  The duties of the Land Development Administrator with regards to this chapter shall include:
(1)  Processing requests for subdivision approval, variances and appeals;
(2)  Interpreting terms and provisions;
(3)  Reviewing and commenting on variance petitions;

(4)  Maintaining files and other public records related to the administration and enforcement of
these regulations.

Newberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-4




{5) Coordinating all local, state, and other appropriate agency review and comment on all
subdivisions proposed under these regulations;

(6)  Approving, disapproving, or conditionally approving preliminary and final plats of minor
subdivisions;

(7)  Approving, disapproving, or conditionally approving final plats of major subdivisions;

(8)  Chairing, scheduling, and coordinating input from the Land Development Review
Committee;

(9)  Providing reports to the Joint Planning Commission and County Council in support of their
duties;

(10} Establishing such procedures as necessary and proper for the administration of their
responsibilities under these regulations; and

(11) Any other duties assigned by the County Administrator, Joint Planning Commission, or
County Council related to this chapter and authorized by state law.

§ 154.014, COUNTY DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS.

The County Director of Public Works or their designee shall assist the Land Development Administrator
with review of all subdivision plats with an emphasis on streets, stormwater, and utilities. The County

Director of Public Works or their designee may also assist with public street construction ma nagement
and inspections as requested by the County Administrator.

§ 154.015. COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR.

The County Administrator shall appoint the Land Development Administrator and shall have the
authority to exercise any and all duties and authorities assigned to such. The County Administrator shall
also appoint the Land Development Review Committee and the County Director of Public Works.

§ 154.016. LAND DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE.

The Land Development Review Committee shall meet at a time and place determined by the Land
Development Administrator to assist with reviews of all major subdivision plats and minor plats as
requested by the Administrator. The Land Development Review Committee shall include the Land
Development Administrator, County Director of Public Works, SCDOT, County Fire Director, County 911
Addressing Office, SCDES Storm Water Manager, FEMA Manager, and the appropriate electric service
provider, water provider, and sewer provider.

§ 154.017. COUNTY COUNCIL.

County Council has authority to adopt, repeal, or amend the provisions of this chapter, and to take any
other action not otherwise delegated to staff or the Joint Planning Commission as the County Council
may deem desirable and necessary to implement the provisions of this ordinance.

§ 154.018. JOINT PLANNING COMMISSION.

The Joint Planning Commission is charged with the following duties:

{A) Reviewing and making a recommendation on any amendments to this chapter;

(B}  Approving, disapproving, or conditionally approving preliminary plats for major subdivisions;

(C) Approving, disapproving, or conditionally approving any final or bonded final plat referred to the
Joint Planning Commissicn by the Land Development Administrator;

Newberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-5



(D)
(E)
(F)

Hearing and deciding requests to vary the regulations contained within this chapter;
Hearing and deciding appeals from a decision of the Land Development Administrator; and

Establishing an annual calendar for development review deadlines and meeting dates.

§ 154.019. PENALTIES AND REMEDIES.

(A)

(B)

(€

(D)

Penalties Generally. Where any land is subdivided in violation of this chapter, the Land
Development Administrator may, in accordance with the provisions of South Carolina Code of Laws
§ 56-7-80, as amended, issue an ordinance summons, or institute injunction, mandamus, or other
appropriate action or proceeding to prevent such unlawful action.

Specific Remedies. Specific remedies for the violation of any provision of this cha pter include the
following:

(1) Misdemeanor; penalties. It shall be unlawful for any person to subdivide property without
meeting all of the requirements of this chapter. Conviction for violation of this ordinance is
punishable as a misdemeanor under the general penalty provisions of the county code and the
magistrate may impose any penalty up to the maximum permitted by state law.

(2) Withholding of permits. The Land Development Administrator and Chief Building Official shall
deny permits for any use or work on any property subdivided in violation of this chapter. Other
appropriate officials shall also withhold all other applicable county permits for work that
violates this chapter.

(3) Injunction. Enforcement of the provisions of this chapter may also be achieved by injunction.
When a violation occurs, the Land Development Administrator may, either before or after the
institution of other authorized action, apply to the appropriate division of court for a mandatory
or prohibitory injunction commanding the defendant to correct the unlawful subdivision of
land.

(4) Order of abatement. In addition to an injunction, the Land Development Administrator may
apply for, and the court may enter into, an order of abatement as part of the judgment in the
case. An order of abatement may direct any of the following actions:

(a) Buildings or other structures on the property be closed, demolished, or removed;
(b) Fixtures, furniture, or other moveable property be moved or removed entirely;
(c) Improvements, alterations, modifications, or repairs to land and/or structures be made; or

(d) Any other action be taken that is necessary to bring the property into compliance with this
chapter.

Complaints. Whenever a violation of this chapter occurs, or is alleged to have occurred, the Land
Development Administrator shall investigate such complaint and take such action as provided by
this chapter. Complaints may be filed in writing or verbally, stating fully the cause and basis for the
complaint.

Ordinance summons. The Land Development Administrator is authorized to issue an ordinance
summons pursuant to county code provisions for violations of this chapter.

§ 154.020. AMENDMENTS.

(A)

Review by Joint Planning Commission. All proposed amendments to this chapter, except those
initiated by the joint planning commission, shall be submitted to the commission for its
recommendations as to approval, approval with specified alterations, or denial. Unless such

Newberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-6



(B)

(€

recommendation is provided within 30 days of submittal or unless a longer period is agreed upon
in writing by the person or agency initiating the proposal, the governing authority may proceed to
act.

Public Notice and Hearing. No such proposed amendment shall be acted upon by the governing
authority until after a public hearing thereon, at least SOIIEYSMNONEE of which shall have been
published in a newspaper of general circulation in the county.

Limitation on Resubmittal. Except when initiated by the governing authority or the joint planning
commission, no proposed amendment failing of passage shall be considered in substantially the
same form within one year of rejection.

§ 154.021. VARIANCES.

(A)

(B)

(€)

(D)

Initiation. A petition for variance may be initiated only by the owner of the affected property, an
agent authorized in writing to act on the owner’s behalf, or a person having a written contractual
interest in the affected property.

Filing. A petition for variance must be filed with the Land Development Administrator on a form
provided by the County, accompanied by a non-refundable filing fee as established by the County
Fee Schedule.

Criteria for Approval. The Joint Planning Commission shall grant such variance or modification only
upon a determination that this Ordinance creates an unnecessary hardship in the development of
the land and each of the following criteria has been met. Itis the burden of the applicant requesting
the variance to present evidence to support each of the criterion listed below. The Joint Planning
Commission may not issue a requested variance to this chapter unless all of the following criteria
have been met.

(1)  The variance shall not be detrimental to the public health, safety, and general welfare of the
county;

(2)  The variance shall not adversely affect the reasonable development of adjacent property;

(3)  The variance is justified because of topography or other special conditions unique to the
property involved, and the variance is not requested due to mere inconvenience or financial
disadvantage; and

(4)  The variance is consistent with the objectives of this chapter and shall not have the effect of
nullifying the intent or purpose of this chapter or any other pertinent county or state
regulations.

(5) In addition to the above standards, when considering a variance from the design standards
contained within Article 5, the following conditions shall be met:

(a) Indirect or restricted access cannot be obtained;

(b) No engineering or construction solutions can be applied to mitigate the condition(s)
stated in the variance request;

(c) No alternative access is available from a street with a lower functional classification than
the primary roadway; and

(d) The hardship was not self-created.

Action by the Joint Planning Commission. The Joint Planning Commission may approve, approve

with conditions, or deny the variance application.

Newberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-7



(E)

Effect of Variance Approval. After the approval of a variance by the Joint Planning Commission, the
petitioner shall be required to follow the procedures for preliminary and final plat approval in order
to proceed with creation of the subdivision. All decisions made by the Land Development
Administrator under those procedures shall comply with the approved variance including any
conditions that may apply. Such variance shall remain in effect in perpetuity and shall run with the
land regardless of ownership or use, unless superseded by a subsequent variance.

§ 154.022. APPEALS.

(A}

(B}

Appeal to the Joint Planning Commission. The Land Development Administrator's action to
approve or disapprove a land development plat may be appealed to the Joint Planning Commission
by any party in interest. The appeal shall be in writing and shall include any additional information
that the aggrieved party believes is pertinent. If the aggrieved party believes that one or more
provisions of this chapter have been violated, then those provisions should be cited along with
explanations as to the nature of the violation. The Joint Planning Commission shall act on the appeal
within 60 days of receiving the appeal.

Appeal to Circuit Court. An appeal from a decision of the Joint Planning Commission may be taken
to the circuit court within 30 days after actual notice of the decision.

§ 154.023. Reserved.
§ 154.024. Reserved.

‘Article lll - Submission and Approval Procedures

§ 154.025. GENERAL PROCEDURES.

This article describes the procedures by which an applicant gains approval for a subdivision. The
procedures strive to balance the interests of the subdivider, the potential buyers of the subdivided land,
and the surrounding community.

(A} The procedures include the following five steps, as summarized in the following chart and explained
below.
(1)  Informal presentation of a sketch plat for discussion (optional);
{2}  Determination of the subdivision type — either major or minor;
(3)  Formal submission of a preliminary plat for approval {required for major subdivision);
(4)  Formal submission of a final plat or bonded final plat for approval (required); and
(5)  Recording of a final plat or bonded final plat {required).
Newberry County, 5C

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-8




MinorSubdivision Major Subdivision
! |

11 L
A 4
Final Plat Bonded Final Plat

(B) Step 3 of the procedures shall be completed prior to making improvements associated with
subdivision development. Steps 4 and 5 of the procedures shall be completed prior to the sale of
any lot within the proposed subdivision.

§ 154.026. DETERMINATION OF SUBDIVISION TYPE.

The Land Development Administrator shall determine the type of land division applicable at the time of
submission based on the facts presented in the application and the definitions below. If at any time during
the review process for a minor subdivision it is determined that improvements are needed or more lots
than stated shall be created, and that such improvements or lot numbers trigger major subdivision review
and approval, the Land Development Administrator shall notify the applicant that major subdivision
requirements must be met.

(A) A Major Subdivision is a subdivision of land that creates more than a total of five lots, or which may
require or proposes to create any of the following:

(1) New public streets;

(2)  Improvements to existing public streets;

(3) The extension of public water or sewer;

(4)  Reservation of land for open space, school sites, public safety stations or similar facilities;
(5)  The addition of a community wastewater system; or

(6) The installation of site drainage or other improvements impacting or having the potential to
impact adjacent properties, streets or public lands including riparian corridors and wetlands.

(B) A Minor Subdivision is a subdivision that does not meet the criteria for the definition of a major
subdivision or an individual plat for land division.

(1)  Individual Plats for Land Division are described as follows.

(a)  The combination or recombination of portions of previously platted lots where the total
number of lots is not increased and the resultant lots are equal to the standards of this
chapter and other relevant county ordinances;

Newberry County, SC
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-9




(2)

(b)  The division of land into parcels of five acres or more where no new street is involved
and plats of these exceptions are submitted as information to the Land Development
Administrator who shall indicate that fact on the plats;

{c) The combination or recombination of entire lots of record where no new street or
change in existing streets is involved; and

{d) Property transferred by will, intestate succession, or forced division decreed by
appropriate judicial authority or in the case of property transferred by tax sale as
authorized by The Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, and other platting
actions as outlined in Section 154.027 (B).

If at any time during the review process for a minor subdivision it is determined that
improvements are needed or more lots than stated shall be created, and that such
improvements or lot numbers trigger major subdivision review and approval, the Land
Development Administrator shall notify the applicant that major subdivision reguirements
must be met.

§ 154.027. MINOR SUBDIVISIONS.

The purpose of this section is to establish requirements for minor subdivisions. No site work may
commence, nor may a building permit be issued for construction, in a minor subdivision until the Building
and Zoning Department reviews and approves the minor subdivision plat and the plat is recorded.

(A)  Submission and Review Procedures. Submissions determined by the Land Development
Administrator to be minor subdivisions shall meet the following requirements:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Filing of application. Application for approval of a minor subdivision plat shall be made to the
Land Development Administrator, The application submission shall include five copies of the
surveyed plat and the number of copies which the applicant desires to be stamped and
returned.

Minor Plat Reguirements. The minor subdivision plat shall be prepared with the inclusion of
items as identified in Section 154.027. However, a topographic survey plat is not required
when the preliminary plat calls for the subdivision of a tract of land into a minor subdivision,
unless required by the County Director of Public Works.

Conformance with plats. The final plat shall conform in all respects to the final plat for
subdivisions from which the minor plat is derived and approved by the Joint Planning
Commission.

Action by Land Development Administrator. The Land Development Administrator shall
review and act upon the minor subdivision plat not later than 15 days after a complete
application has been submitted.

Distribution of copies for review. The Land Development Administrator may waive any
requirement for one or more reviews for minor subdivision preliminary plats when in their
opinion such review(s) is unnecessary, except that reviews by the County Director of Public
Works shall be required when a new driveway connecting to a public road is proposed.

Approval. If the minor subdivision plat and all supplementary data comply with all applicable
requirements of this chapter, the Land Development Administrator shall approve the minor
plat and such approval shall be noted on each copy of the minor subdivision plat.

Denial. If the minor subdivision plat is denied, the reasons for such action shall be stated in
writing and signed by the Land Development Administrator and postmarked or delivered in

Newberry County, 5C

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-10



person to the applicant within five days after action was taken. If deemed necessary, any
modifications required by the Land Development Administrator as prerequisites to approval
of the minor subdivision plat shall be noted on a copy of the plat. The department shall retain
one copy and the remaining copies shall be returned to the subdivider.

(8)  Action. The Land Development Administrator shall provide the Joint Planning Commission
with a monthly report of actions taken related to approvals of minor subdivisions.

(9)  Appeals. The process for appealing a decision of the Land Development Administrator or Joint
Planning Commission is provided in Article 2 of this chapter.

(B) Other Platting Actions. The following platting actions involving the development, transaction,
division, combination, or alteration of land do not fall under the definition of a subdivision.
However, these actions require the review and approval of the Newberry County Building and
Zoning Department prior to recordation of a plat. Plats shall be reviewed within 15 days after
submittal to the Building and Zoning Department provided that the plat meets the minimum
requirements of this ordinance and other applicable county, state, or federal regulations. Platting
actions shall adhere to the platting requirements established in the Minimum Standards Manual for
the Practice of Land Surveying in South Carolina. All platting actions must be recorded within 45
days of Building and Zoning Department approval. Plats not recorded within the 45-day period shall
be null and veid.

(1} Platting Action by Court Decree. Where a platting action is subject to court decree, the County
Attorney is authorized to request that the court allow the Land Development Administrator
to review said plat in order to advise the court on whether such action will adhere to the
standards as established in this Ordinance.

(2) Boundary Surveys, Resurveys, and Lots of Record. A boundary survey includes the following
items: a resurvey and a survey of a lot of record. A resurvey is a plat where no new lot
boundaries have been added, deleted, or changed from a previously recorded plat. For
purposes of this section, a survey of a lot of record refers to the creation of a survey for an
existing lot that has previously been referenced only by a written deed prior to the adoption
of this Ordinance. A boundary survey shall meet the standards of a final plat provided in
§154.041. A boundary survey plat shall also show and provide the following information:

(a} A surveyor certification that the plat is a platted lot of record;

(b) A statement that the survey was undertaken to settle a property line dispute (to be
signed by all affected members, if applicable);

(c}  Plat book and page numbers of the recorded lots {resurvey only); and
(d) Deed book and page numbers of the recorded lots (lots of record).

(3)  Estate Plats and Family Transfers. Estate plats and family transfers shall be reviewed and shall
follow the same requirements as minor subdivisions and major subdivisions where applicable.

(4) Combination of Lots. A combination or recombination of lots occurs when an owner wishes
to have two or more lots combined into an equal or fewer number of parcels. Lot
combinations shall meet the standards of a final plat provided in §154.041. The survey shall
also show or be accompanied by the following information:

(@) Common lot lines shown as dashed cn the plat, and a note shall be added that specifies
that the common lot lines are to be “deleted upon recording of the plat;”

Newberry County, 5C

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-11



(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

{b) A certification of ownership and dedication of the plat agreeing to the combination of
lots signed by the owner(s) of the affected properties;

{c)  Water and sewer authority signoff on the plat indicating approval of the combination;
and

{d) Combinations and recombinations shall meet ail access requirements, and current and
proposed access to the property shall be shown on the plat.

Lot Reconfigurations. An alteration of lots occurs when a lot line is changed from what is
provided on a previously recorded plat. Lot alterations shall meet the final plat standards
provided in §154.041. The survey shall also show or be accompanied by the following
information:

{a) Common lot lines to be deleted shall be shown as dashed on the plat and a note shall
be included that specifies that the common lot lines are to be “deleted upon recording
of the plat;”

(b) The owner(s) of the affected properties shall sign a certification of ownership and
dedication on the plat agreeing to the combination of lots;

{c)  Water and sewer authority signoff on the plat indicating approval of the combination;

(d) Lot reconfigurations shall meet all access requirements. Current and proposed access
to the property shall be shown on the plat; and

(e)  Portions of lots affected by the reconfiguration shall be clearly identified and the tax
map parcel(s} it shall be combined with shall be clearly indicated.

Mortgage Plats. A mortgage plat identifies a lot, parcel, or portion of a lot or parcel, that has
a financial lien against it. Mortgage plats shall meet the standards of a final plat as provided
in §154.041.

Land Contract Sales Parcels. Land contract sales parcels shall be treated in the same manner
as minor subdivisions or major subdivisions, as applicable.

Lease Parcels. Lease parcels shall be treated in the same manner as minor subdivisions or
major subdivisicns, as applicable.

(9) Easements. Easement plats are used to record easements across a property or properties.
Easement plats shall meet the standards of a final plat as provided in §154.041. The survey
shall also show or be accompanied by the following information:

(a) Easements (existing or proposed) shall be clearly delineated with dashed lines marking
the boundaries;

(b}  Astatement shall be included on the plat indicating that the survey is not a subdivision
and shall identify the entity responsible for ownership and maintenance; and

{c}  All affected property owners must sign the plat.

(10) Wetland Defineations. Wetland delineation plats shall meet the standards of a final plat as
provided in §154.041. The survey shall aiso show or be accompanied by the following
information:

(@} An approval letter from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, containing the SAC permit
number that directly refers to the specific plat;
(b)  U.S. Army Corps of Engineers SAC permit number provided on the plat; and
Newberry County, 5C

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-12



(c})  Astatement on the plat indicating that the survey is not a subdivision and the purpose
is to delineate U.S. Army Corps of Engineers jurisdictional wetlands.

(11) As-Built (Record) Plans. As-built plans shali meet the standards of a final plat as provided in
§154.041. The survey shall also show or be accompanied by the following information:

(a)  All existing structures on the property, including distances to property lines and square
footage of all structures. All principal structures shall meet required setbacks;

(b}  Street locations with centerline stationing and curve data;

{c)  Street centerline elevations at 100-foot intervals;

(d) Drainage structures and elevations;

(e)  Drainage pipes with size, material, length, slope, and invert elevations;

{fl  Ponds or lakes with average bottom and water surface elevations. Any control
structures shall be shown in detail;

{g) Drainage ditches and swales with elevations at 100-foot intervals; and
(h}  Water and sewer as-built information as required by the appropriate utility company.

(12) Phasing Plats. All phasing plats shall conform to the phasing plan as approved by the Planning
Commission. Phasing plats shall conform to the phasing plan approved by the Planning
Commission in all aspects including the corresponding phase number, metes, bounds, and
dimensions of each phase. Phasing plats shall meet the standards of a finai plat as provided
in §154.041. The survey shall also show or be accompanied by the following information:

(a)  The plat shall be clearly identified as a phasing plat. Phasing plats shall state the date of
Joint Planning Commission approval of the corresponding phasing plan; and

(b) A statement shall be provided on the plat that indicates that the survey is to facilitate
building development and the phase lines shown are in accordance with an approved
phasing plan.

(13) Cemetery Lots. New or expanded cemeteries created after the adoption of this Ordinance
shall be treated in the same manner as lot reconfigurations except that cemeteries are not
required to provide written water and sewer authority approval.

(a)  Cemetery plats shall conform to standards of a final plat as provided in §154.041 and
indicate the size and location of all individual plats and access easements. Individual
burial plots and access easements shall be delineated with dashed lines. Cemetery plats
shall document the creation and expansion of a cemetery. Cemetery lots shall not be
used for the sale of individual sites for building purposes, with the exception of
mausoleums, crematories, monuments or other facilities serving to maintain or
otherwise guarantee the perpetual care of individual burial plots.

§ 154.028. PRE-APPLICATION CONFERENCE AND SKETCH PLAT REVIEW.

(A) The developer is encouraged to meet with the Land Development Administrator early in the
planning process to informally discuss the intended development project and to provide a sketch
plat for informal review. The objectives of this discussion are to:

{1)  Provide early identification of potential problems or conflicts with any applicable county
policy or county or state law; and

Newberry County, 5C
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-13




(B)

(€

(2)  Discuss alternatives and options for design elements such as the location of roads, lot lines,
open space, easements, and similar features, prior to the commitment of financial resources
by the applicant.

Sketch plats do not require formal approval, nor do they bind the developer. Similarly, the Land
Development Administrator is not bound to approve any element of the subdivision by virtue of its
being included as part of a sketch plat that has been reviewed.

Sketch plats and other supporting documentation to be discussed should be provided in one clearly
legible hard copy (paper) and one in digital PDF format. The applicant is encouraged to provide a
sketch plat of the entire tract even if the present plan may only call for the development of a porticn
of the property. '

§ 154.029. SUBMISSION AND REVIEW OF A PRELIMINARY PLAT.

{A)

(B)

(C}

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

Filing of application for major subdivisions. Application for approval of a preliminary plat of a major

subdivision must be made to the Land Development Administrator at least 15 days prior to the Joint
Planning Commission meeting at which the plat is to be considered. In making application, a
subdivider, developer, or property owner shall include one full hard copy set of the preliminary plat,
a completed application, and other materiais at a scale that is legible and reproducible as may be
required in these regulations. All materials must also be provided in digital format as PDFs.

Distribution of copies for review. The Land Development Administrator shall submit copies of
preliminary plats for major subdivisions to the Newberry County Director of Public Works or their
designee for review and comments. The applicant is required to apply for a sanitary sewer system
review with the regional SCDES office. The applicant is then responsible for providing the SCDES
report of the review to the Land Development Administrator prior to approval of the plat. The Land
Development Administrator may waive any requirement for one or more reviews for minor
subdivision preliminary plats whenever in their opinion such review is unnecessary, except that
reviews by the County Director of Public Works or their designee shall be required whenever a new
driveway connecting to a public road is proposed.

Fees. To defray the costs of administration and notification, the applicant shall be required to pay
fees prior to the review and approval of preliminary plats. Such fees are established as part of a
separate fee schedule adopted by the County Council. Fees are due at the time of filing.

Comments by Land Development Review Committee. Each member of the committee shall be
asked to review the plats to be considered and their review comments shall become part of the
Land Development Administrator’s record of findings supporting the final decision.

Action on a plat for a major subdivision. The Joint Planning Commission shall approve, approve

conditionally, or deny the preliminary plat for a major subdivision. If the preliminary plat is denied
approval or approved conditionally, the reasons for such actions shall be stated in writing, signed
by the chair of the Joint Planning Commission, and mailed or delivered in person to the applicant
within five days after action was taken.

Approved copy. !f the preliminary plat is approved, the Building and Zoning Department shall retain
one copy and one copy shall be given to the applicant.

Authorization granted by preliminary plat; time limits. Preliminary plat approval shall be
authorization for the subdivider to proceed with the installation of site improvements and to
proceed with preparation of the final plat but shall not authorize the sale or transfer of lots.

{1)  Time Limits for installation of improvements. Approval of the preliminary plat shall become
void unless more than 50 percent of the installation of improvements has been completed or

Newberry County, 5C

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-14



(H)

()

)

(K)

unless a final plat of all or a portion of the subdivision is submitted for approval within two
vears of the date of said approval. However, the Planning Commission may waive this
requirement and consent to an extension of said time period if the applicant can show just
cause.

(2)  Phasing. If the subdivider is proposing to develop the preliminary plat in phases, a phasing
plat shall be included in the preliminary plat submission. Any proposed changes to the
phasing plat shall be approved by the Land Development Administrator and County Director
of Public Works or their designee. The subdivider must begin the construction of all approved
phases of the preliminary plat within 24 months of plat approval or such plat must be
resubmitted for the Land Development Administrator's further review and approval,

Installation of improvements prior to approval of plat. No permanent improvements shall be

made prior to the granting of approval of a preliminary plat by the Land Development Administrator.

Appeals. The process for appealing a decision of the Land Development Administrator or Joint
Planning Commission is contained within Article Il of this chapter.

Certification. Approval of the preliminary plat shall be noted on the preliminary plat as stamped by
the Land Development Administrator. Such notation shall include the date on which the Land
Development Administrator or Joint Planning Commission granted approval.

Effect of preliminary plat approval. Upon approval of the preliminary subdivision plat, the
subdivider may proceed with compliance with the other requirements of this chapter, construction
of proposed improvements, and the preparation of the final subdivision plat. Approval of a
preliminary subdivision plat shall not constitute approval of the final subdivision plat. Application
for approval of the final plat shall be considered only after the requirements for final plat approval,
as specified herein, have been fulfilled and after all other specified conditions have been met.

§ 154.030. SUBMISSION AND REVIEW OF FINAL PLATS FOR MAJOR SUBDIVISIONS.

(A)

(B)

(€}

(D)

Filing of application. Application for approval of a final plat of a proposed subdivision shall be made
to the Land Development Administrator. In making application, a subdivider of property shall
include four hard copies and one digital copy in PDF format of the plat and the number of copies
that the applicant desires to be stamped and returned.

Conformance with preliminary plat. The final plat shall conform in all respects to the preliminary
plat as previcusly approved by the Joint Planning Commission but shall incorporate all modifications
required by the Joint Planning Commission in its review of the preliminary plat. Any substantial
deviation from the preliminary plat or the modifications required by the Joint Planning Commission,
as determined by the Land Development Administrator, shall require the Joint Planning Commission
to act on the final plat.

Installation of improvements. Prior to approving a final plat, all required site improvements must
have been installed to the county's satisfaction or a financial guarantee, naming the county as
payee, must have been posted to secure the actual construction and installation of required site
improvements.

Action by loint Planning Commission. If Joint Planning Commission action is required, the

Commission shall review and act upon the final plat at its next regularly scheduled meeting. The
Land Development Administrator shall notify the applicant, in writing, of the Commission's actions
not later than 15 days after such meeting. The applicant may waive this reguirement and consent
to the extension of such period.

Newberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-15



(E)

(F)

(G)

Approval. if the final plat and all supplementary data comply with all applicable requirements of
this chapter, the Land Development Administrator shall note such approval on each copy of the final
plat.

Denial. f the final plat is denied, the reasons for such action shall be stated in writing and signed
by the Land Development Administrator and postmarked or delivered in person to the applicant
within five days after action was taken. If deemed necessary, any modifications required by the
Land Development Administrator or Joint Planning Commission as prerequisites to approval of the
final plat shall be noted on the plat. The Building and Zoning Department shall retain one copy of
the final plat and the remaining copies shall be returned to the subdivider.

Appeals. The process for appealing a decision of the Land Development Administrator or Joint
Planning Commission is contained within §154.022 of this chapter.

§ 154.031. SUBMISSION AND REVIEW OF BONDED FINAL PLATS.

In lieu of completing all infrastructure improvements prior to transfer of ownership, a
developer/subdivider may apply for an alternative Bonded Final Approval process as detailed in the
following subsections,

(A)

(B)

(€)

(D)

{E)

(F)

Filing of Application. Application for approval of a bonded final plat of a proposed subdivision shall
be made to the Land Development Administrator. In making application, a subdivider of property
shall include four hard copies and one digital copy in PDF format and the number of copies which
the applicant desires to be stamped and returned, as well as an estimate for the completion of
infrastructure items as approved by the Joint Planning Commission at preliminary approval but that
have not been completed. These infrastructure items shall be listed, and cost estimates provided
for the completion of each listed item. The cost estimates shall be reviewed and approved by the
County Director of Public Works or their designee based on related costs associated with the
completion of such infrastructure improvements.

Conformance with Preliminary Plat. The bonded final plat shall conform in all respects to the
preliminary plat as previously approved by the Joint Planning Commission but shall incorporate all
modifications required by the Joint Planning Commission in its review of the preliminary plat. Any
substantial deviation from the preliminary plat or the modifications required by the Joint Planning
Commission, as determined by the Land Development Administrator, shall require the Joint
Planning Commission to review and act on the bonded final plat.

Establishment of Financial Guarantee. Prior to approving a bonded final plat, a financial guarantee,
naming the county as payee, must be posted to secure the actual construction and installation of
required site improvements. Such financial guarantee shall meet the requirements of §154.032.

Action by Joint Planning Commission. The Joint Planning Commission shall review and act upon
the bonded final plat at its next regularly scheduled meeting following a complete submittal of the
application materials by the applicant. The Land Development Administrator shall notify the
applicant, in writing, of the Commission's actions not later than 15 days after such meeting. The
applicant may waive this requirement and consent to the extension of such period.

Approval. If the bonded final plat and all supplemental information that comply with all applicable
requirements of this chapter are approved by the Joint Planning Commission, the Land
Development Administrator shall note such approval on each copy of the bonded final plat. The
bonded final plat may be recorded with the Newberry County Clerk of Court as outlined in §154.032.
The sale of individual lots may occur following the recordation of the bonded final plat.

Inspection and Administration. During the period in which the County is in possession of the
financial guarantee, the applicant shall regularly update the Land Development Administrator on

Newberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discession Draft 9/24/2024 1-16



(G)

(H)

the status of the improvements. Periodic inspections may be conducted by the Land Development
Administrator at the development site. The Land Development Administrator shall maintain the
status of financial guarantees and shall notify the County Administrator, the County Attorney, and
the developer at least 30 days in advance of a financial guarantee expiration. Within the 30-day
period prior to expiration, the developer shall notify the Land Development Administrator of their
intentions to complete the improvements or obtain a revised financial guarantee to extend the date
of infrastructure completion.

Upon completion of the improvements and prior to the expiration of the financial guarantee, the
developer shall notify the Land Development Administrator that such improvements are complete.
The Land Development Administrator and the County Director of Public Works or their designee
shall inspect the site as they deem necessary to ensure that compliance with the preliminary plans
has been achieved. Upon their satisfaction, a copy of their report shall be completed and included
within the project development file and release of the financial guarantee may begin.

Denial. If the bonded final plat is denied by the Joint Planning Commission, the reasons for such
action shali be stated in writing, signed by the Land Development Administrator, and postmarked
or delivered in person to the applicant within five days after action was taken. If modifications are
required by the Land Development Administrator or Joint Planning Commission as prerequisites to
approvai of the bonded final plat, they shall be noted on a copy of the plat. The Building and Zening
Department shall retain one copy of the bonded final plat and the remaining copies shall be
returned to the subdivider.

Appeals. The process for appealing a decision of the Land Development Administrator or Joint
Planning Commission is included in §154.022 of this chapter.

§ 154.032. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES FOR BONDED FINAL PLAT APPLICATIONS.

(A)

Prior to completion of all required improvements by the subdivider, financial guarantees covering
such improvements shall be prerequisite to Joint Planning Commission action on the application for
bonded final plat approval. The subdivider shall submit such guarantees in accordance with the
requirements of this section.

(1}  The subdivider may post a financial guarantee with the county guaranteeing the completion
of designated improvements in compliance with the requirements herein. The security must
be in a form acceptable to the county by an issuer licensed by the state of South Carolina. The
county shall not accept such financial guarantees to be posted for dedicated private
ingress/egress easements and/or dedicated private rights-of-way.

(2} The county shall have the right to refuse such security for any improvements and to require
construction and installation thereof by the subdivider.

(3)  Where accepted by the county, the security shall:

(a} Empower the county or, if applicable, any other governmental unit having a legal
responsibility for the construction and completion of the improvements to draw on
funds, in its sole discretion, on deposit in an institution of the developer's choice, or
accept such funds for deposit to its own account.

(b)  Be in an amount equal to 150 percent of the cost, as estimated by the developer's
engineer and approved by the County Director of Public Works or their designee, for
any improvements which have not been constructed in compliance with the
requirements of this chapter prior to the posting of such security and for which

Newberry County, 5C

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 117



(4)

(5)

sufficient certification has been furnished. Any financial guarantee must be readily
accessible from a financial institution with a location in Newberry County.

If any or all the required improvements are not completed within the time specified by the
Planning Commission, the county may complete the improvements using the posted security
to defray the costs of such required improvements.

The financial guarantee may be reduced as improvements are constructed. No more than
two reductions may occur for the portion of the development covered under the financial
guarantee. Requests for reduction shall be subject to the approval of the County
Administrator or his designee. Requests for reduction shall require receipts from installation
of the improvements and an acceptable inspection of such improvements by the County
Director of Public Works or their designee.

§ 154.033. RECORDING OF FINAL PLAT.

No subdivision plat shall be recorded unless it bears a stamp of plat approval signed by the Land
Development Administrator. The subdivider or applicant shall be responsible for filing and paying the
appropriate filing fee to the register of deeds office.

§ 154.034. LONG-TERM MAINTENANCE AND PERFORMANCE.

(A) Upon completion of the construction and installation of required improvements, the subdivider
shall file with the Building and Zoning Department written certification that the improvements have
been completed according to the final plat, including design drawings and specifications submitted
as part of the plat, and according to the requirements of this chapter and Chapter 91 of the
Newberry County Code of Laws as administered by the County Director of Public Works or their
designee.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

The subdivider shall guarantee the completed public roadways and drainage system
improvements against defect in function, workmanship, and materials for two years following
acceptance of such improvements under warranty.

The subdivider shall furnish a financial guarantee with the county guaranteeing the
maintenance of the improvements and/or correction of deficiencies during the warranty
period.

The warranty period security shall be in an amount equal to 20 percent of the cost of the
completed roadway and drainage system improvements.

The security shall empower the county to draw, in its sole discretion, on the posted funds to
correct deficiencies which the subdivider does not correct in a timely manner.

§ 154.035. DEVELOPMENT REVISIONS.

Any revision to the final plat shall be submitted to the Building and Zoning Department for review. The
Building and Zoning Department may approve minor changes. Minor changes include the following:

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

Shift in lot lines where open space, recreation space, or rights-of-way are not involved;
The shift or widening of easements;

Correction of the distances or bearings of property lines;

A change of land use;

Correction of general information; or

An increase in density of up to 5% of the total dwelling units for the development.

Newberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-18



Changes beyond the scope outlined above shall be submitted to the Joint Planning Commission for
review and approval.

§ 154.036. Reserved.
§ 154.037. Reserved.

Article IV — Survey and Plat Requirements

§ 154.038. SURVEYING TO CONFORM WITH STATE AND COUNTY REGULATIONS.

All land development and subdivision within the jurisdiction of this title shall be surveyed, platted, and
marked in accord with the Standards of Practice Manual for Surveying in South Carolina, as required by
the South Carolina Code of Regulations, Chapter 49, Article 4, as amended, and as required in these
regulations.

§ 154.039. SKETCH PLAT.

If submitted for review and discussion, a sketch plat shall include the following information:

1 DESCRIPTIO
SKETCH PLAT A rough drawing showing a proposed subdivision.
Identification Data:

Name of Subdivision Proposed name of the development.

Names and Addresses Name(s) of property owners and addresses of property to be subdivided
Attribute Data:
Location Map Map that describes the proposed development in relation to the surrounding area

Scale, North Arrow and A graphic scale, a numerical scale, a north arrow, and the date such plat was drawn
Date
Existing Site Information:

Acreage Total acreage to be subdivided

Zoning Classification(s) Zoning classifications assigned to the development property
Exterior Boundaries Boundaries of the tract to be subdivided

Land Uses Existing usage of land

Proposed Site Information:

Lots and Dwelling Units | Total lots created and total proposed dwelling units

Lot Lines All proposed interior lot lines, with general lot dimensions

Interior Easements All proposed interior easements, including location, dimension and purpose

Public Areas All proposed parks, school sites, and other areas designated for common use by the
property owners or public use

Land Uses Proposed usage of land

§ 154.040. PRELIMINARY PLAT.

If required, a preliminary plat shall be prepared and sealed by a registered land surveyor at a scale not
less than one inch equals 200 feet and shall include the following information:

P
Identification Data:
Name of Subdivision | Proposed name of the development

Newberry County, SC
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-19




Identification and tax map numbers of property to be subdivided and adjacent properties,
Information names and contact information for the developer(s), surveyor(s), and engineer(s)
involved in the project

Attribute Data:
Location Map Map that describes the proposed development in relation to the surrounding area
Scale, North Arrow and A graphic scale, a numerical scale, a north arrow, and the date such plat was
Date drawn

Tax Map Numbers Tax map numbers for the parent parcels and adjacent properties
Acreage Total acreage to be subdivided
Seal Seal of registered land surveyor/engineer preparing the survey
Existing Site Information:
Boundaries All existing political boundaries, property lines, and easements
Structures Description and location of existing structures, including manufactured homes
Exterior Boundaries Boundaries of the tract to be subdivided
Zoning Classification(s) Zoning classifications assigned to the property to be developed and adjacent
properties
Setbacks Setbacks, as established by the zoning ordinance
Land Uses Existing usage of the development property and adjacent properties
Roadways Centerline, outer edges, and rights-of-way of existing or platted highways, and

streets and roads on or adjacent to the property to be subdivided, including the
names of these features
Watercourses, Railroads, | The location of bodies of water, railroads, and bridges, either on or adjacent to the
and Bridges property to be subdivided, including the names and owners of these features
Proposed Site Information:
Lots and Dwelling Units | Total lots created and total proposed dwelling units

Lot Lines All proposed interior lots lines, with general lot dimensions
Lot and Block Numbers Proposed lot and block numbering, including phasing
Lot Size All lot sizes identified by area
Interior Easements All proposed interior easements, including location, dimension and purpose
Public Areas All proposed parks, school sites, and other areas designated for common use by
the property owners or for public use
Buffers, Setbacks, Buffers, setbacks, open space, and land scaping plans, as required by the zoning
Landscaping, Open ordinance
Space
Land Uses Proposed usage of land, including parks, school sites, and other areas designated
for common use by property owners and/or the public
Roadways Centerline, outer edges, and rights-of-way of proposed streets, including
pavement widths and proposed street names
Traffic Study If the proposed development includes or accesses an existing County or State
road, a traffic study as provided in Chapter 91 is required
Copy of Existing Plat In the case of re-subdivision or an addition to an existing subdivision, a copy of the
existing plat with the proposed additions or changes superimposed thereon
Topographic Survey A topographic survey showing contours at vertical intervals of not more than five
feet, and all proposed contour changes in areas where cut or fill is to be done
Roadway Profiles and Detailed schematics of the proposed roadways and bridges including road profiles,
Construction Drawings materials to be used, installation requirements, and construction drawings per

Chapter 91 and any other pertinent regulations or requirements

Newberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-20



ormwater Plan Size and location of existing and proposed drainage ditches, associated
watercourses, and stormwater systems for the subject property per South
Carolina regulations

Environmental Plan Identification of known jurisdictional wetlands, critical areas, and lands identified
' by FEMA as flood zone, either on or adjacent to the property to be subdivided per
Chapter 152 and any other pertinent regulations or requirements

St

Erosion and Description and location of all proposed erosion and sedimentation control
Sedimentation Plan measures per Chapter 155 and any other pertinent regulations or requirements
Utility Plan Description and location of existing and proposed features such as power lines and

facilities on the subject property, including size and location of sewers, water
mains, storm drains, culverts, or other underground facilities within the road or

; right-of-way of roads adjoining the proposed development
Water Certification The appropriate water provider shall certify that public water is available to

Han service the development or SCDES shall certify that the property can support
e adequate wells and the plans as submitted are acceptable
Sewer Cer_tiﬂc_at_ion The appropriate sewer provider shall certify that public sewer is available to
b service the development or SCDES shall certify that the property has percolated
Sisa for adequate septic systems and the plans as submitted are acceptable
Access Certification Applicant shall supply approved encroachment permit for access onto public
o ; rights-of-way in accordance with county and state standards. Encroachment onto

a private right-of-way shall require written approval from the owner(s).

Landscape Plan Landscaping plans and details, including species, placement and installation
R guidelines, as required by the zoning ordinance
Open Space e For subdivisions within which open space is required by this ordinance or the
Documentation zoning ordinance, a draft of the documents by which irrevocable preservation of
e open space shall be assured
Restrictive Covenants Proposed restrictive covenants related to the development

(A) Letters of Certification. The applicant shall be required to provide the following letters of
certification indicating that adequate facilities exist to service the proposed development,

(1)  Water Availability. Applicable public utility shall certify that public water is available to service
the development or SCDES shall certify that the property can support adequate wells and the
plans as submitted are acceptable.

(2)  Sewer Availability. Applicable public utility shall certify that public sewer is available to service
the development of SCDES shall certify that the property has percolated for adequate septic
systems and the plans as submitted are acceptable.

(3)  Access. Applicant shall supply approved encroachment permits for access onto public rights-
of-way in accordance with county and state standards. Encroachments onto a private right-
of-way shall require written approval from the owner(s).

§ 154.041. FINAL PLAT.

The final plat shall conform in all respects with the approved preliminary plat, including all conditions for
approval thereon noted, and shall include the following information:

I\

= A AN E
hical representation showing one or more lots or tracts of

- An accurate grép
land.

Identification Data:

Newberry County, SC
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-21




Names and Addresses

Names of property owner(s) or agent authorized by the owner(s) and
addresses and tax map numbers of property to be subdivided and adjacent
properties, names and contact information for the developer(s), surveyor(s),
and engineers involved in the project.

Attribute Data:

Location Map

Map that describes the proposed development in relation to the surrounding
area

Scale, North Arrow and
Date

A graphic scale, a numerical scale, a north arrow, and the date such plat was
drawn

Tax Map Numbers

Tax map numbers for the parent parcels and adjacent properties

Acreage

Total acreage to be subdivided

Dedication Statement

A signed dedication statement for all new rights-of-way and/or
ingress/egress and general utility easements as specified in §154.041(A)

Seal

Raised seal of registered land surveyor/engineer preparing the survey

Existing Site Information:

Boundaries

All existing political boundaries, property lines, and easements

Exterior Boundaries

Boundaries of the tract to be subdivided

Zoning Classification(s)

Zoning classifications assigned to the property to be developed and adjacent
properties

Setbacks Setbacks, as required by the zoning ordinance

Roadways Centerline, outer edges, and rights-of-way of existing or platted highways,
streets, and roads on or adjacent to the property to be subdivided, including
the names of these features

Watercourses, The location of bodies of water, railroads, utilities, and bridges, either on or

Railroads, Utilities, and
Bridges

adjacent to the property to be subdivided, including the names and owners
of these features

Proposed Site Information:

Lots and Dwelling Units

Total lots created and total proposed dwelling units

Lot Lines

All proposed interior lots lines, identified by metes and bounds

Lot and Block Numbers

Proposed lot and block numbering, including phasing

Lot Size All lot sizes identified by area

Interior Easements All proposed interior easements, including location, dimension, and purpose

Public Areas All proposed parks, school sites, and other areas designated for common use
by the property owners or for public use

Buffers, Setbacks, Buffers, setbacks, open space, and landscaping plans, as required by the

Landscaping, Open zoning ordinance

Space

Roadways Centerline, outer edges, and rights-of-way of proposed streets, including

pavement widths and approved street names

Restrictive Covenants

Restrictive covenants to be filed with the Clerk of Court for the development

Dedication or Reservation

An offer of dedication or reservation of public areas and easements as
provided in §154.052

Dedication Statement. The final plat shall include a signed dedication statement for all new rights-

of-way and/or ingress/egress and general utility easements, in one of the following forms:

(1)  For all plats showing a right-of-way or a road intended to be turned over to Newberry County

for maintenance:

Newberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

Discussion Draft 9/24/2024




"BY THE RECORDING OF THIS PLAT, | HEREBY DEDICATE THE EASEMENTS AND RIGHTS-OF-
WAY SHOWN HEREON TO THE USE OF THE PUBLIC FOREVER. NOTHING IN THIS DEDICATION
SHALL BE CONSTRUED TO IMPLY AN ACCEPTANCE BY NEWBERRY COUNTY OF ANY ROADWAY
OR DRAINAGE FACILITY OR AS CREATING ANY DUTY BY NEWBERRY COUNTY TO MAINTAIN
ANY ROADWAY, RIGHT-OF-WAY, OR DRAINAGE EASEMENT SHOWN HEREON."

(2)  Forall plats showing a private (not city, county, state, or federal) ingress/egress easement:

"BY THE RECORDING OF THIS PLAT, | HEREBY DEDICATE THE EASEMENTS AND RIGHTS-OF-
WAY SHOWN HEREON TO ALL PURCHASERS AND SUCCESSORS IN THE INTEREST OF THIS
PROPERTY, AND | HEREBY DEDICATE THE GENERAL UTILITY EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREON TO
THOSE ENTITIES WHICH PROVIDE SAID UTILITIES. NOTHING IN THIS DEDICATION SHALL BE
CONSTRUED TO IMPLY AN ACCEPTANCE BY NEWBERRY COUNTY OF ANY ROADWAYS OR
DRAINAGE FACILITY OR AS CREATING ANY DUTY BY NEWBERRY COUNTY TO MAINTAIN ANY
ROADWAY, RIGHT-OF-WAY OR DRAINAGE EASEMENT SHOWN HEREON."

§ 154.042. BONDED FINAL PLAT.

When a bond is provided, a bonded final plat shall include the following information:

BUNDED AL PLA
" DESCRIPTIO
Afinal plat prepared in advance of infrastructure being constructed,

g T
L4

Identification Data:
Name of Subdivision Proposed name of the development
Names and Names of property owner(s) or agent authorized by the owner(s) and addresses
Identification and tax map numbers of property to be subdivided and adjacent properties,
Information names and contact information for the developer(s), surveyor(s), and engineer(s)

involved in the project

Attribute Data:

Location Map Map that describes the proposed development in relation to the surrounding area

Scale, North Arrow and A graphic scale, a numerical scale, a north arrow, and the date such plat was
Date drawn

Tax Map Numbers Tax map numbers for the parent parcels and adjacent properties

Acreage Total acreage to be subdivided

Dedication Statement A signed dedication statement for all new rights-of-way and/or ingress/egress and
general utility easements as specified in §154.041 (A)

Seal Raised seal of registered land surveyor/engineer preparing the survey

Existing Site Information:

Boundaries All existing political boundaries, property lines, and easements

Exterior Boundaries Boundaries of the tract to be subdivided

Zoning Classification(s) Zoning classifications assigned to the development property and adjacent
properties

Setbacks Setbacks, as required by the zoning ordinance

Roadways Centerline, outer edges, and rights-of-way of existing or platted highways, and

streets and roads on or adjacent to the property to be subdivided, including the
names of these features
Watercourses, The location of bodies of water, railroads, utilities, and bridges, either on or
Railroads, Utilities, and adjacent to the property to be subdivided, including the names and owners of
Bridges these features
Proposed Site Information:
Lots and Dwelling Units I Total lots created and total proposed dwelling units

Newberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-23



Lot Lines All proposed interior lots lines, identified by metes and bounds
Lot and Block Numbers Proposed lot and block numbering, including phasing

Lot Size All lot sizes identified by area

Interior Easements All proposed interior easements, including location, dimension, and purpose

Public Areas All proposed parks, school sites, and other areas designated for common use by
the property owners or for public use

Buffers, Setbacks, Buffers, setbacks, open space, and landscaping plans, as required by the zoning

Landscaping, Open ordinance.

Space

Roadways Centerline, outer edges, and rights-of-way of proposed streets, including

pavement widths and approved street names
Engineer’s Cost Estimate A cost estimate for all remaining improvements certified by a licensed engineer in
: South Carolina

Financial Guarantee A cash bond, irrevocable letter of credit, or other acceptable security in the
amount of 150% of the engineer’s cost estimate

Restrictive Covenants Restrictive covenants to be filed with the Clerk of Court for the development

Dedication or Reservation | An offer of dedication or reservation of public areas and easements as provided in
§154.052

§154.043. DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS REQUIRED.

(A)  As part of any application submitted pursuant to this chapter, the applicant shall declare whether
the tract or parcel of land that is the subject of such application is restricted by any recorded
covenant that is contrary to, conflicts with, or prohibits the permitted activity.

(B) If Newberry County has actual notice of a restrictive covenant on a subject tract or parcel of land
that is contrary to, conflicts with, or prohibits the permitted activity, the county shall not issue the
permit unless the County Attorney receives confirmation from the applicant that the restrictive
covenant has been released for the tract or parcel of land by action of the appropriate authority or
property holders or by court order.

(C)  Asused in this subsection, the following apply:

(1)  “Actual Notice” is not constructive notice of documents filed in local offices concerning the
property, and does not require the local planning agency to conduct searches in any records
offices for filed restrictive covenants; and

(2)  “Permit” does not mean an authorization to build or place a structure on a tract or parcel of
land.

§ 154.044. Reserved.
§ 154.045. Reserved.

Article V — Design Standards and Improvements

§154.046. STANDARDS ARE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS.

These standards and improvements shall be considered minimum requirements. Higher standards are
encouraged in subdivision design and shall not be limited to these minimum requirements.

§ 154.047. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS.

(A) Consistency with Adopted Plans and Policies. All subdivisions of land regulated by this chapter
must be consistent with the most recently adopted plans and policies for the area in which it is

Newberry County, SC
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-24




(8)

(€)

(D)

(E)

located. This includes general policy regarding development objectives for the area as well as
specific policies or plans for land use and public facilities such as streets, parks and open space,
schools, and other similar facilities as may be contained within the Comprehensive Plan for
Newberry County and area plans, park and recreation plans, or similar plans or policies for the
region and Newberry County and its municipalities.

Access Between Adjoining Properties. To the maximum extent practicable, all streets shall connect
to a comprehensive network of public areas that allows free movement of automobiles, cyclists,
and pedestrians.

Relationship to Railroad Rights-of-Way. When a subdivision adjoins a railroad right-of-way, the

subdivider may be required to arrange the street pattern to provide for future grade separation of
street and railroad crossings.

Parallel Streets Along Thoroughfares. Where a tract of land to be subdivided adjoins a federal or
state highway or a major arterial street, the subdivider may be required to provide a frontage road
parallel to the highway.

Access Roads. Per Sections D106 and D107 of the 2021 South Carolina Fire Code, the following
access road requirements shall be met.

(1) Multi-family Residential Developments

(a)  Multi-family Residential Developments of 101 to 200 Dwelling Units. Projects that
include more than 100 dwelling units shall have two separate access roads, each
approved for fire access by the Newberry County fire code official. However, such
projects in which all buildings, including nonresidential occupancies, are equipped
throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler system(s) installed per the
requirements of the S.C. Fire Code are required to have only one approved access road.

(b)  Multi-family Residential Developments of more than 200 Dwelling Units. Projects that
include more than 200 dwelling units shall have two separate access roads, each
approved for fire access by the Newberry County fire code official, regardless of
whether they are equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler system(s).

(c}  Access Road Separation in Multi-Family Residential Developments. Where two access
roads are required, they shall be placed a distance apart equal to not less than one-half
of the length of the maximum overall diagonal dimension of the property or area to be
served, measured in a straight line between accesses.

{2) One- or Two-Family Residential Developments.

(a)  One- or two-family residential developments that include more than 30 dwelling units
shall have two separate access roads, each approved for fire access by the Newberry
County fire code official. However, such projects in which all dwelling units are
equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler system(s) installed per the
requirements of the S.C. Fire Code are required to have only one approved access road.

{(b)  The number of dweliing units accessed from a single access road approved by the
Newberry County fire code official shall not be increased unless the access roads will
connect with future development, as determined by the Newberry County fire code
official.

(c)  Access Road Separation in One- and Two-family Residential Developments. Where two
access roads are required, they shall be placed a distance apart equal to not less than

Newberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-25



one-half of the length of the maximum overall diagonal dimension of the property or
area to be served, measured in a straight line between accesses.

§ 154.048. STREETS.

(A}

(B)

(€

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

Conformity Required. Plans for public and private streets must comply with and be approved by the
county in accordance with Chapter 91 - Road and Development Design of the Newberry County
Code of Ordinances prior to preliminary plat approval. All constructed streets must also comply with
the minimum requirements of Chapter 91 prior to acceptance by the county. Road names and
addresses are subject to, and must be approved in accordance with, the requirements of Chapter 94 -
Streets and Sidewalks of the Newberry County Code of Ordinances.

Road Layout. The location and width of all proposed streets shall be in conformity with official
plans and maps and with existing amended plans of the Joint Planning Commission. The street
layout of the proposed subdivisions shall provide for the continuation or projection of streets
already existing in areas adjacent to the area being subdivided.

Dead End Streets/Cul-de-sacs, Temporary. Where the Joint Planning Commission deems it

necessary, dead-end streets shall be provided with an approved temporary turnaround having
radius of at least 50 feet. Dead end streets designed to be permanently closed at one end shall not
exceed 2,000 feet in length without an intermediate turnaround and shall not exceed 4,500 feet in
total length. In no case shall a temporary cul-de-sac serve as primary access to more than 40
dwelling units,

Intersections. Not more than two streets shali intersect at one point. All streets shall intersect as
nearly to right angles as possible, subject to variations approved by the Joint Planning Commission
upon evidence of good cause. In no case shall streets intersect at an angle of less than 75 degrees.
Streets intersecting other streets shall either intersect directly opposite to each other or shall be
separated by at least 150 feet between centerlines, measured along the centerline of the street
being intersected.

Road Signs. All road signs, including signs for private roads, shall be designed, installed, and maintained
by Newberry County, unless an alternative design is reviewed and approved by the Joint Planning
Commission.

Driveway Connections. All driveway connections to public roads must comply with South Carolina
Department of Transportation (SCDOT) regulations, or Chapter 91 of the Newberry County Code of
Ordinances, as applicable. All driveway connections to a county road must be approved by Newberry
County. All driveway connections to a S.C. Highway must be approved by SCDOT.

Gated Subdivisions. Gated subdivisions proposed for development after the effective date of this
chapter shall be subject to approval by the Joint Planning Commission consistent with the
following criteria:

(1) Gated subdivisions shall not be permitted in any location where the Joint Planning
Commission determines that such location interferes with roadway, pedestrian, or shared-
use path networks outlined in an official plan adopted by the County or SCDOT.

(2)  Entrances shall be designed to permit full access by police, fire, rescue, and similar emergency
vehicles and shall have written approval of all appropriate emergency service agencies prior
to approval of the gate. Unmanned gates shall open automatically at the sound of a “yelp”
from an emergency vehicle siren unless otherwise approved in writing by all appropriate
emergency service agencies. In addition, a keypad at the entry gate shall be programmed to
allow entry by emergency personnel. The developer and property owners’ association shall

Newberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-26



provide unfettered access to all private streets for emergency and law enforcement vehicles
and shall provide reasonable access for county and state employees and vehicles operating
within the scope of their official duties to perform those duties, and to all public utility
companies and vehicles to perform installation and maintenance of public utilities
infrastructure.

{3)  Entry gates shall have sufficient minimum gate widths and openings to allow safe passage of
all vehicles permitted to use public roadways. Unless overhead barriers provide a minimum
of 13 feet, six inches of clearance at the lowest point, there must be at least one additional
entry gate and one additional exit gate without overhead barriers or obstructions.

{4) Gatehouses and entry gates shall be located outside any right-of-way or required buffer areas,

(5}  Entry gates shall be set back a sufficient distance from public street entrances to meet SCDOT
or County requirements and shall provide for stacking and safe access for at least three
passenger vehicles (at least 54 feet). An additional setback between the point of the access
control device and the entry gate shall be required to allow a passenger vehicle that is denied
access to turn around and exit safely onto a public street.

(E) Sidewalks. Sidewalks are not required, but if included in a proposed development they must meet
all applicable American Disabilities Act requirements.

§ 154.049. BLOCKS.

(A) Design Generally. Block size and shape shall reflect the physical characteristics of the site regarding
topography, applicable zoning requirements, natural growth, and soil conditions, and shall permit
access, circulation, control, and safety of traffic.

(B) Maximum Length. No block shall be more than 2,000 feet in length.

(C) Minimum Length. No block shall be less than 600 feet in length. Where practicable, blocks along
arterial and collector streets shall be not less than 1,000 feet in length.

(D) Residential Areas. In general, blocks used for residential purposes shall be of sufficient width to
allow for two tiers of lots of appropriate depth, except where reverse frontage lots are required
along a major street, or where prevented by the size, topographical conditions, or other inherent
conditions of property, in which case the approval of the Land Development Administrator is
required.

(E) Commercial and Industrial Areas. Blocks in commercial and industrial areas may vary from the
elements of design detailed in this section if required by the nature of the use, subject to the
approval of the administrative officer.

(F)  Pedestrian Ways and Crosswalks. Pedestrian ways and crosswalks, not less than 10 feet wide,
may be required by the Planning Commission through the center of blocks more than 800 feet
long where deemed essential to provide circulation or access to schools, playgrounds, shopping
centers, transportation, or other community facilities.

§ 154.050. LOTS.

(A) Access. Each lot shall have an ingress/egress easement grantedto it, and each |ot shall be accessible
by a road, street, or shared driveway, unless exempted from this requirement by Chapter 91 -
Expansion of the County Road System of the Newberry County Code of Ordinances.

Newberry County, SC
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-27




(B)

(€)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

(H)

Design Generally. The lot size, width, shape, grade, and orientation shall be in proper relation to
street and block design, and to existing and proposed topographical and natural vegetative
conditions, and appropriate for the type of development and use contemplated.

Zoning Requirements. Where applicable, all lots shall meet the minimum area and dimensional
requirements for the zoning district within which they are located.

Orientation of Side Lot Lines. Insofar as practical, side lot lines shall be at right angles to straight
street lines and radial to curved street lines.

Corner Lots. Corner lots shall be of sufficient size and shape to permit required building setback
and orientation to both streets.

Remnants. Remnants of land not meeting all requirements of this chapter for a lot shall be
prohibited.

Driveways on Corner Lots. Driveways on corner lots shall be located at least 40 feet from the
point of intersection of the nearest street right-of-way lines. Minimum frontage for any corner lot
shall be 40 feet.

Reverse Frontage Lots. Reverse frontage lots are prohibited, except where required to provide
separation of residential development from major streets or to overcome specific disadvantages of
topography or orientation. Access to the lot shall be only from the lower order street.

Reverse Frontage Lots

Flag Lots. The creation of flag lots is discouraged. The Planning Commission may only approve flag
lots where, in its discretion, such lots would be impractical to extend a public street and meet all of
the following criteria:

(1) The flag lot(s) do not pose a safety hazard for residents or uses as determined by emergency
services providers;

(2)  No flag lot abuts more than one other flag lot;

(3)  The access appendage (flag lot pole) may not be contiguous to the access appendage of
another flag lot. Flag lot poles serving individual flag lots or flag lot pairs must be separated
by a minimum of 100 feet along the public or private road;

(4)  Flag lots shall not constitute more than 10% of the total number of building sites in a given
development, or three lots, whichever is greater;

Newberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-28



(5)

(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)

The lot area occupied by the flag lot pole is not counted as part of the required minimum lot
area and the lot otherwise meets all dimensional requirements for the zoning district in which
it is located,;

No flag lot pole shall exceed 500 feet in length from the road right-of-way;

The flag lot pole shall be a minimum of 50 feet in width;

The pole of the flag lot must have street frontage and be a legal part of the flag lot parcel;
Flag lots, once created, may not be further subdivided; and

All driveway connections to public roads, including flag lot poles, must comply with SCDOT
regulations.

Flag Lot Flag Lot Lot Flag Lot

Lot Lot

e Atleast 100’ ———ste=505

Lot Lot Lot
Flag Lot
o, {. o
Lot Lot Lot
Flag Lot
\

(1)  Landlocked Parcels. Legal lots of record existing at the time of adoption of this ordinance that do
not have access to a public street, but which otherwise meet the requirements of this ordinance,
may be developed and used for any legally permissible activity provided all of the following
conditions are met.

(1)

(2)

An access easement is obtained. Easements across other parcels of land to gain access to a
landlocked parcel (access easements) must be in the form of a binding agreement approved
by the county and recorded in the office of the Newberry County Clerk of Court. Such
easements shall be a minimum of 20 feet in width and shall not be vacated without the
express approval of the Land Development Administrator;

Subdivision of a landlocked parcel is not permitted; and

Newberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-29



(3) The address of the landlocked parcel shall be prominently displayed at the intersection of the
entrance to the property and the public street to aid in public safety access.

§ 154.051. EASEMENTS.

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D}

(E)

Drainage Easements. Where a subdivision is traversed by a water course, drainage way, channel,
or stream, adequate areas for stormwater drainage easements shall be reserved, conforming
substantially to the lines of such water courses, and of sufficient width to convey stormwater and
to provide for maintenance and improvement of such water courses. The location of any surface
watercourse, channel, or stream shall not be changed without the approval of the governing
authority. Where practicable, drainage easements shall center along or be adjacent to a common
property line. The minimum acceptable drainage easement shall be determined by the following
formula: three times the depth, plus the bottom width, plus 20 feet. The ditch shall be offset in the
easement to provide 15 feet on one side at the top of the ditch bank (the same side for the length
of the easement) for the purposes of maintenance. Drainage improvements within county-owned
easements are maintained by the county for the conveyance of storm water; however, the general
maintenance of easements for appearance shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

Utility Easements. Adequate areas of suitable size and location shall be allocated for utility
easements. The location and size of such easements shall be worked out with the public and private
utilities involved. The easements shall center along, or be adjacent to, a common property line
where practicable, and the easements shall be installed underground except where unusual
circumstances prohibit such practice.

Maintenance. The county shall maintain only those improvements specifically accepted for public
maintenance by the county. Other easements shall stipulate that property owners shall be
responsible for general maintenance of such easements.

Easement and Right-of-Way Clearance. Easements must remain free of trees, brush, stumps,
debris, trash, fallen trees, and other obstructions, and proposed rights-of-way shall similarly be
cleared, and obstructions removed, prior to acceptance.

Encroachments. Encroachments, including landscaping, fences, and utilities shall not be
constructed within a county-maintained easement or right-of-way unless an encroachment permit
is obtained from the county.

(1}  The encroachment permit review and inspection fee are set forth in the Newberry County Fee
Schedule,

(2) The county may require a financial guarantee for encroachment permits where potential
damages warrant or for applicants who have previously failed to comply with permit
requirements.

§ 154.052. RESERVED OPEN SPACE.

(A) Applicability and Conformity. The reservation of open space land shall be required for all major

subdivisions. All open space shall conform to the requirements of this section and open space
requirements contained within the Zoning Ordinance. Where a conflict occurs, the most stringent
provision shall be required.

(B} Identification of Reserved Open Space. Reserved open space shall be identified during the
preliminary plat process per §154.029 and dedicated through the County's dedication process per
§154.041 and Chapter 91 of the Newberry County Code of Laws during the final plat or bonded final
plat process.

Newhberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-30



(€

(€)

Minimum Required. No less than 10% of the gross acreage of the subdivision must be set aside as
open space.

Uses. Open space may include recreational areas, wooded areas, and environmental open space.
Environmental open space is defined as any pervious area set aside for the protection,
enhancement, or creation of water quality buffers, wildlife habitat, view corridors, flood hazard
mitigation, or similar environmental features and may or may not include public access.

§ 154.053. STORM DRAINAGE.

To provide for the proper drainage of surface water, to permit the unimpeded flow of natural
watercourses, and to protect both residents of the proposed subdivision and adjacent property owners
from increased runoff resulting from development, a drainage system shall be designed and installed that
meets the following criteria. The storm drainage plan for each subdivision must be reviewed and
approved by the County Director of Public Works or their designee to ensure compliance with Chapter
155 — Erosion and Sediment Control, of the Newberry County Code of Ordinances.

(A)
(B)

(€)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

Low Impact Development. Low Impact Development is encouraged.

Direction of Discharge. Required roadway and subdivision drainage shall be directed to a drainage
channel within the immediate drainage basin provided the receiving channel has sufficient capacity
or is improved to provide sufficient capacity for conveyance of the outfall flows. Under extenuating
circumstances where this is not feasible, the design engineer shall document a good faith effort of
the attempts made to provide the required information to the County in compliance with the above
provisions.

Connection to Existing System. Where there is an existing public drainage system reasonably
accessible to the subdivision, the County Director of Public Works or their designee may require
connection to the proposed system.

Lake Water Elevations. The water elevation in lakes shall not be higher than 3 feet below the
centerline elevation of the roadway at any time.

Damming Structures. No dams or structures serving as dams to impound water, or any portion of
such a structure, shall be allowed in the right-of-way. This further means that no County road shall
pass over such a structure without approval from the appropriate agencies (Newberry County Soil
and Water, SCDES, and the County Director of Public Works).

Drainage Outfall into a Lake. Where a drainage outfall discharges into a lake, rip rap shall be placed
under and around the end joint as needed and on slopes at the end of the pipe. The outfall invert
elevation must be above the normal pool elevation of the lake.

Drainage Outfall into a Stream or Ditch. Where a drainage outletisan appreciable distance above the
bottom of a stream or ditch into which it empties, a drop structure (junction box) with a stub or other
approved outfall design must be used. Inall other instances, the outfall shall be required to have rip
rap placed under and around the end joint as needed and on slopes at the end of the pipe. All
discharge pipes 36 inches and over shall have a precast headwall or site-built reinforced concrete or
masonry headwall.

Stabilization of Open Channels. All open channels used for conveyance of roadway drainage shall be
properly stabilized to prevent erosion and shall require rip rap at all direction changes exceeding 25
degrees or as directed by the County Director of Public Works or their designee.

Newberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-31



§ 154.,054. EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL.

Stormwater Management and Sedimentation and Erosion Control Plans shall be submitted to the Newberry
County Stormwater Manager for review and approval. A Land Disturbance Permit must be approved prior
to final plat approval being granted by the County or the commencement of land disturbance of any kind.

§ 154.055. AREAS SUBJECT TO FLOODING,

Any plat of a subdivision submitted to the Land Development Administrator or Planning Commission for its
approval must comply with the provisions set forth in Chapter 152 — Flood Damage Prevention of the
Newberry County Code of Ordinances). In addition, any plat of a subdivision that contains land subject to
flooding shall be accompanied by evidence that no appreciable expansion of the area subject to flooding
would result from the proposed development of the land being subdivided, and that the proposed
development shall be adequately protected from inundation without appreciable interference with the
flow of any watercourse or into an impounding basin. All such evidence, including surveys and
specifications, shall be submitted with the preliminary plat.

§ 154.056. SANITARY SEWAGE DISPOSAL.

(A) General Requirements. The provisions for sanitary sewage disposal shall be provided by the
applicant and meet the requirements of subsections B and C as follows. The applicant shall identify
the type of sewerage disposal system at the time of preliminary plat approval.

(B} Public Sewerage System. Where public sanitary sewerage systems are within a designated public
sewer authority service area, the applicant shall connect with same and provide sewer access to
each lot. The facilities shall be designed, installed, operated, and maintained as prescribed by the
public sewerage authority. The applicant shall provide the county with a letter certifying that the
public sewerage authority intends to service the development and the plans as submitted are
acceptable.

(C) Septic Tanks. Where public sanitary sewerage systems are not available or the public sewer
authority is not able to provide sewerage service to the site, the applicant shall design and install
septic tanks in a manner prescribed by SCDES standards and specifications after completion of a
SCDES percolation test for each lot. If SCDES requirements for lot size exceed the county’s minimum
lot size, the greater shall prevail. The applicant shall provide the county with a SCDES letter certifying
that the property will percolate adequately for septic systems and the plans as submitted are
acceptable.

§ 154.057. WATER SUPPLY.

(A) General Requirements. The provisions for water supply shall be provided by the applicant and meet
the requirements of subsections B and C as follows. The applicant shall identify the type of water
system at the time of preliminary plat approval.

(B) Public Water System. Where public water systems are within a designated public water authority
service area, the applicant shall connect with same and provide water access to each lot. The
facilities shall be designed, installed, operated, and maintained as prescribed by the public water
authority. The applicant shall provide the county with a letter certifying that the public water
authority intends to service the development and the plans as submitted are acceptable.

(1)  Fire hydrants shall be required where public water is accessible and shall be designed and
installed by the applicant to the specifications as established by the applicable public fire
service provider,

Newberry County, SC
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-32




(C} Private Wells. Where public water systems are not available and no public water authority is able
to provide sewer to the site, the applicant shall design and install private wells as required by SCDES
standards and specifications. The applicant shall provide the county with a letter from SCDES
certifying that the property can adequately support wells and the plans as submitted are acceptable.

§ 154.058. OVERSIZED AND OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS.

Whenever the subdivision's impact on existing roadways and drainage systems requires upgrades to
existing facilities, the subdivider is required to construct the upgrades concurrent with development of
the subdivision. The subdivider may make a payment in lieu of the upgrades if more extensive
improvements to those facilities have been planned by the agency having jurisdiction and such payments-
in-lieu are approved by the Land Development Administrator.

§ 154.059. MAINTENANCE.

(A}  The subdivider shall make such adequate provisions as shall be approved by the Land Development
Administrator for the perpetual maintenance of all sewer and water facilities, private streets,
private stormwater drainage systems, parks, recreation facilities, open space, and trails in the
subdivision until such obligations have been assumed by a public agency.

(B) The maintenance of all streets, stormwater drainage systems, and easements intended to be
transferred to the county for maintenance, and properly identified on the plat as such, shall only be
the responsibility of the county from and after acceptance of such improvements by the county into
its maintenance program.

§ 154.060. Reserved.
§ 154.061. Reserved.

- Atrticle VI — Definitions

§ 154.062. General Rules of Construction.

(A) Except as specifically defined herein, all words and phrases used in the Land Development
Regulations have their customary dictionary definitions.

(B) The present tense includes the past and future tenses.
(C}  Singular words shall include the plural, and plural words include the singular.
(D) The words “County Council” mean the County Council of Newberry County, South Carolina.

(E}  The words “Land Development Administrator” mean the Newberry County Land Development
Administrator as designated by the Newberry County Administrator.

(F)  The words “Land Development Review Committee” mean the Newberry County Land
Development Review Committee as appointed by the Newberry County Administrator.

(G} The words “County Director of Public Works” mean the Newberry County Director of Public Works
as appointed by the Newberry County Administrator.

{H) The words “loint Planning Commission” mean the Joint Planning Commission for Newberry
County.

()  Any reference to a section or article shall mean a section or article of the Newberry County Land
Development Regulations, unless otherwise specified.

Newberry County, 5C
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-33




{f)  Any reference to a chapter or ordinance shall mean a chapter of the Newberry County Code of
Ordinances, unless otherwise specified.

(K)  The words “Developer,” “Applicant,” and “Subdivider,” whether capitalized or not, are
interchangeable and mean the owner of land proposed to be subdivided or their representative
who is responsible for any undertaking that requires review under this chapter.

(L}  The words “shall,” “will” and “must” are mandatory; and the word “may” is permissive, except
when the context of the particular use is negative (e.g., “may not”).

(M} The word “street” includes the words “road” and “highway.”

{N) The word “person” includes an individual, firm, association, organization, partnership,
corporation, company, trust, governmental unit, and any combination thereof.

(0) The word “day” or “days” means calendar days unless otherwise specified.

(P} Words used in the masculine gender include the feminine gender and vice versa.
(Q) The words “lot” or “property” include the words lot, plot, parcel, property, or tract.
(R)  The word “structure” includes the words building and accessory structure.

§ 154-063. Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed to
them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

AS-BUILT. A map, plan, or layout showing the location and boundaries of land including existing utility
lines and facilities.

BLOCK. A parcel of land entirely surrounded by streets or highways or by a combination of streets,
highways, parks, railroad rights-of-way, shorelines of waterways, or boundary lines of municipalities.

CENTERLINE STATIONING. The location of the centerline and any station points that the
surveyor/engineer identifies in their data

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. The comprehensive plan adopted by the county council pursuant to South
Carolina Local Government Comprehensive Planning Enabling Act of 1994, S.C. Code §§ 6-29-310 et seq.
{1994 Supp.).

CUL-DE-SAC. A minor street having one end open to motor vehicle traffic and one end terminating in a
turnaround.

DITCH. A man-made channel constructed to convey stormwater runoff.

EASEMENT. Agrant of one or more property rights by the property owner to and/or for use by the public,
a corporation, or another person or entity.

ENGINEER. A registered professional engineer in good standing with the state board of registration for
professional engineers and land surveyors.

FINAL PLAT. An accurate graphical representation showing one or more lots or tracts of land. The drawing
shall meet all the standards and requirements as set forth in this chapter and in the laws of the state.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE. A financial surety made by a developer to the local government for the costs of
improvements related to development. Financial guarantees include a cash bond, irrevocable letter of
credit, or other acceptable security with Newberry County.

Newberry County, SC
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-34




FLAG LOT. A lot which accesses a road by a narrow strip of land, the width of which is less than the
minimum lot width specified in the Zoning Ordinance, The configuration of the lot often appears as the
shape of a flag on a pole.

GRADE. The slope of a road, street, or other public way specified in percentage terms.
IMPROVEMENTS. Streets, utilities, drainage facilities, and street signs.
INDIVIDUAL PLAT FOR LAND DIVISION. Plats that meet the following criteria:

(1)  The combination or recombination of portions of previously platted lots where the total number
of lots is not increased and the resultant lots are equal to the standards of this chapter and
other relevant county ordinances;

(2)  The division of land into parcels of five acres or more where no new street is involved and plats
of these exceptions are submitted as information to the Land Development Administrator who
shall indicate that fact on the plats;

(3) The combination or recombination of entire iots of record where no new street or change in
existing streets is involved; and

(4) Property transferred by will, intestate succession, or forced division decreed by appropriate
judicial authority or in the case of property transferred by tax sale as authorized by The Code of
Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.

LAND DEVELOPMENT. The changing of land characteristics through redevelopment, construction,
subdivision into parcels, condominium complexes, apartment complexes, commercial parks, shopping
centers, industrial parks, mobile home parks, and similar developments for sale, lease, or any combination
of owner and rental characteristics.

LEASE PARCEL. A parcel created for lease, rental, or contractual purposes, and for which the ownership
does not change.

LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT. A management approach and set of practices that can reduce runoff and
pollutant loadings by managing runoff as close to its source(s) as possible. LID includes overall site design
approaches {holistic LID, or LID integrated management practices) and individual small-scale stormwater
management practices (isolated LID practices) that promote the use of natural systems for infiltration,
evapotranspiration and the harvesting and use of rainwater {{).5. EPA, 2024).

LOT. Adesignated parcel, tract, or area of land established by plat, subdivision, or as otherwise permitted
by law, to be separately owned, used, developed, or built upon. The word "lot" includes the words "plot,"
"tract," and "parcel.”

LOT, REVERSE FRONTAGE. A lot bordering along streets on both its front and rear property lines. Also
referred to as a Double Frontage Lot.

MAJOR SUBDIVISION, See “Subdivision, Major.”
MINOR SUBDIVISION. See “Subdivision, Minor.”

MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME PARK. A parcel of land containing five or more mobile/manufactured
home sites used for dwelling units, including service buildings and facilities.

PERIMETER STREET. Any existing street to which the parcel of land to be subdivided abuts on only one
side.

PLAT: A single parcel or tract of land as part of a subdivision.

Newberry County, SC
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-35




PRELIMINARY PLAT. A scaled drawing showing a proposed subdivision. Such drawing shall meet the
requirements as set forth in this chapter.

PRINCIPAL STRUCTURE. A structure that is significant or primary rather than accessory.
REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR. A land surveyor properly licensed and registered in the state.

RIGHT-OF-WAY. A strip of land acquired by reservation, dedication, forced dedication, prescription, or
condemnation and intended to be occupied by a road, crosswalk, railroad, electric transmission lines, oil
or gas pipeline, water line, sanitary storm sewer, and other similar uses. See also “Easement.”

ROAD. See “Street.”

SKETCH PLAT. A rough drawing showing a proposed subdivision. Such plat is not binding to the county
or the developer.

ROAD or STREET. A public or private dedicated right-of-way designed to provide the principal means of
access to abutting property or designed to serve as a roadway for vehicular travel, or both, but excluding
alleys.

ROAD CLASSIFICATION. Functional road classification is the process by which streets and highways are
grouped into classes according to the character of service they are intended to provide. Classifications are
provided and updated regularly by the S.C. Department of Transportation and are based on criteria that
include road type and traffic volume.

(1) ARTERIAL ROAD. A road of regional importance or a main road of the community that is
expected to carry either heavy vehicuiar traffic volumes or high-speed traffic or both. Arterial
roads form a connected network of continuous routes that provide countywide and regional
linkages. Arterials are characterized as having access control, channelized intersections, and
signalization. Service to abutting land is subordinate to the provision of travel service.

(2) COLLECTOR ROAD. Aroad that is used or intended to be used for moving traffic from local roads
to arterial roads. Collectors are generally shorter than arterials but carry high volumes of traffic.
Collector roads carry primarily residential traffic but provide no or limited residential frontage.

(3) LOCAL ROAD. Local roads primarily provide access to adjacent land and road systems of higher
classification and travel over relatively short distances as compared to collector roads. The local
street system comprises all facilities that are not assigned a higher classification and offers the
lowest level of mobility.

SUBDIVISION. All divisions of a tract or parcel of land into two or more lots, building sites, or other
divisions for the purpose, whether immediate or future, of sale, lease, or building development, and
includes all division of land involving a new street or change in existing streets, and includes re-subdivision
which would involve the further division or relocation of lot lines of any lot or lots within a subdivision
previously made and approved or recorded according to law; or, the alteration of any streets or the
establishment of any new streets within any subdivision previously made and approved or recorded
according to law, and includes combinations of lots of record.

SUBDIVISION, MAJOR. A subdivision of land which creates more than a total of five lots, or which may
require or proposes to create any of the following:

(1) new public streets;
(2) improvements to existing public streets;

(3) the extension of public water or sewer;

Newberry County, SC
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-36




(4) reservation of land for open space, school sites, public safety stations, or similar facilities;
(5) the addition of a community wastewater system; or

(6) the installation of site drainage or other improvements impacting or having the potential to
impact adjacent properties, streets or public lands including riparian corridors and wetlands.

SUBDIVISION, MINOR. A subdivision that does not meet the criteria for the definition of a major
subdivision or an individual plat for land division.

SUBDIVISION PLAT. The final map or drawing, described in this chapter, on which the subdivider's plat of
subdivision is presented to the Land Development Administrator and/or Planning Commission for
approval and which, if approved, may be submitted to the county register of deeds for filing.

SURVEYOR. A registered land surveyor who is in good standing with the state board of registration for
professional engineers and land surveyors.

SWALE. A privately maintained ditch having side slopes of 4:1 or flatter.

UTILITIES. Any or all utility services to a subdivision, including water, electricity, telephone, cable
television, gas, and sanitary sewerage, whether such utilities are supplied by a private individual or
company or a governmental entity.

Newberry County, SC

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS Discussion Draft 9/24/2024 1-37



Newberry County Land Development Regulations
List of Major Updates

The primary intent of the comprehensive update to Chapter 154 - Subdivision Regulations of the
Newberry County Code of Ordinance is to clarify and simplify the ordinance and make it much easier to
understand and interpret for both staff and the public, and to ensure that submission of projects and
administration and enforcement of the ordinance is more efficient for both staff and developers. Ensuring
compliance with state law was also a top priority. The first change per State law was the change of the title
of the ordinance from “Subdivision Regulations” to “Land Development Regulations.”

The ordinance was completely reorganized and much of it rewritten, based on input received from
County staff and a review of general practice for other South Carolina counties. Specifically, the following
major changes were made to meet the primary goals of the project.

General Changes

1. Removed any requirements that were unnecessary or redundant to other ordinances.
2. Moved any fees to the general fee schedule adopted by County Council.

3. Moved all regulations from the definitions section to the appropriate locations.

4. Moved design specific requirements to Chapter 91.
5

Coordinated definitions and requirements that are the same or similar to those provided in Chapter
153 —Zoning Code.

Article | - General Provisions
1. Moved all legal overarching requirements to one subsection.

2. Original requirements were updated to fully comply with State law and reworded to be more
precise.

3. Additional language was added as needed for compliance with State law.
Article Il - Administration and Enforcement

1. Moved all administration and enforcement requirements to one section at the beginning of the
ordinance.

2. Specific duties and responsibilities were provided for all entities involved in the land development
process.

3. Achart was added that summarizes responsibilities for each entity,

4. Ciarified procedures and updated to comply with State law.

Article lil - Submission and Approval Procedures

1. Added a chart to visually explain the general submission process.

2. Consolidated all submission and approval requirements in one section.

3. Organized the section to improve understanding and usability by staff and applicants by providing a
logical progression through the process.

4. Removed “nonresidential subdivisions” as a separate category.



w 0 N o>

Removed “exempt” category and simplified subdivision types into two categories — major
subdivisions and minor subdivisions. Minor subdivisions include those previously “exempted” such
as court decrees, resurveys, family transfers and estate plats, lot configuration alterations,
combination of lots, etc.

Reduced requirements for sketch plats to simplify optional review with staff.
Clarified preliminary plat requirements, reduced number of hard copies required.
Simplified requirements for final plats.

Included a detailed description of, and requirements for, submission and review of bonded final
plats, including financial guarantees,

Article IV — Survey and Plat Requirements

1.

2.

Placed submission requirements for all stages of the submittal process — sketch plat, preliminary
plat, final plat, and bonded final plat — in one subsection.

Placed specific requirements for each stage in table format for simplification and ease of use.

Article V — Design Standards and Improvements

1.
2.

Consolidated all design standards into one subsection.

Greatly reduced design requirements provided in this chapter due to moving specific road design
requirements to Chapter 91. Subsection now focuses on development design and layout.

Added requirements for gated subdivisions.
Added diagrams to illustrate reverse frontage lots and flag lot situations.

Removed specific requirements for stormwater control and floodplains already regulated in other
County ordinances.

Article VI - Definitions

1.

2
3.
4

Added general rules of construction for consistency with Chapter 153 — Zoning Code.
Updated all definitions that are shared with Chapter 153 to ensure consistency.
Removed unused or irrelevant definitions.

Replaced insufficient definitions with more descriptive and accurate definitions.



